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“To build Summo Minerals Corporation into a profitable mid-tier producer of cathode
copper by focusing on mineral deposits amenable to open pit mining methods, heap
leach processing, and recovery by solvent extraction-electrowinning (SX-EW). Summo
endeavors to be a good steward of the land and a responsible and contributive corporate

citizen in the communities in which it operates.”

Copper produced by SX-EW is of extremely high quality (99.999% pure), allowing it to go
directly to market (either rod mills or tube plants), and is generally in the lowest quartile
to lowest third of the production cost curve. Copper is the predominant metal product

for the Company, although other metals amenable to this development approach may be

sought where Summo perceives that an attractive return on investment exists.




#; Achieve a total annual cathode copper production of +100 million pounds within the next five years;

8 Produce copper for less than $0.50/1b. on a cash cost basis;

B Increase production of cathode copper in 2002 in Australia via development of the Hidden Treasure
and Mt Watson deposits and expansion of Mt Cuthbert SX-EW facility (Matrix Metals);

Secure ownership for Matrix Metals of
the White Range copper oxide properties
in Queensland Australia by

making final payment due

June 2002;

Complete a positive
pre-feasibility study

on the Terrazas ;

copper-zine

al

oxide deposit in LNIatrix Metals Ltd.[!

Chihuahua, Mexico % "
and secure a joint PERTH ©
venture partner who

can take the project

through construction;

Bring the Lisbon
Valley Copper
Project into
production as

copper prices and

A /”u S TR AL ! A{

AUSTRALI

Y
P

;v % CAIRNS

Mt Cuthbert].
ONCURay
P ;,
e 20

A

equity markets allow, meanwhile maintaining the permits to construct in good standing;

Identify additional copper rescurces which would enhance the Company’s leverage to potential

increases in copper prices.




Early last year when [ was bemoaning the doldrums of the copper market, an old salt cautioned me with an anec-

‘

dotal admonition “..from the time you are born til you ride in a hearse, never say things can’t get any
worse...”. He was right: things got worse. As evidenced by the accompanying price chart for the year 2001, cop-
per started the year in a price range of $0.80-$0.85/1b. Summo management and many of our investors were of the
opinion that the trough in the copper price cycle was behind us. Market sentiment in general supported this per-
ception. It is what drove us to our investment in Matrix Metals, and the attempt tc raise new equity in mid-year
with Griffiths McBurney & Partners and LOM, Ltd. Unfortunately, our attempts to complete a financing were
unsuccessful, as copper failed to respond as anticipated, and in fact, took a sharp downturn in June, and contin-
ued a downward slide to hit a low below $0.60/lb. by the end of Gctober 2001.

But things are looking up. Major cop-
per producers world-wide are suffer-
ing unprecedented losses at these
extremely low metal prices. In an 50.85
effort to trim their losses and reduce ﬂf&%g r&?
the amount of excess copper coming 3080 g o \N’fg

onto the market, major producers in s0.75 i @Mﬁﬂ

aggregate have announced cut-backs %
$0.70

in production of more than 700,000 M g&ﬂ\w
$0.65 T

tonnes of annual copper production
over the course of 2001. The cumula- %
tive effect of these announced pro- 060 ’
duction cuts has had a positive impact $0.55
on the market, and the copper market

started to show a pulse again in N R N NN N
Noveraber 2001, with prices igmprov- A A S \\w‘@@ gbf t;@‘m@
ing nominally toward year-end.

LME Copper Price 2001
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I have included a second copper price chart which shows the copper price performance since November 2001,
when copper prices bottomed at $0.60/1b. The copper price is currently at $0.73/Ib., representing a +20% improve-
ment since November 2001. However, the price still has a way to go to recover its 10-year average price of
$0.92/1b. The sentiment in the marketplace is that the US economy is coming out of recession. As it does, orders
for durable goods should pick up and copper inventories should start to decline. The market should anticipate
this decrease in inventories, and should drive the price of copper up. If this analysis is accurate, and we continue
to have an optimistic outlook on the US economy, we should experience significant improvement in the copper
price in 2002.

BEPEPOEIROORLOOHOCOOCDOO0OQO0OQO0OO

“.from the time you are born til you ride in a
hearse, never say things can’t get any worse...”
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Shareholders Letter continued

Meanwhile, Summo has continued to advance and enhance its portfolio of copper development properties, to the
extent allowed by available cash. The following pages highlight the acquisition of a substantial share interest in
Matrix Metals Limited in 2001. Matrix has the potential to be a low-cost copper producer by open pit heap leach
methods and SX-EW processing at its Mt Cuthbert operation. Matrix owns a quality physical processing facility,
good remaining reserves, and excellent exploration potential to expand the reserves, which would allow for
expansion of the plant, increased copper production, and lower unit operating costs. Matrix also cwns the White
Range Project, which is in the feasibility study stage and capable of producing low-cost copper by SX-EW at twice
the current production rate of the Mt Cuthbert facility. Summo intends to focus its investment efforts in advanc-
ing Matrix as a viable and expanding proeducer of low-cost cathode copper in Australia.

Summo has completed a third-party pre-feasibility study on the Terrazas copper-zinc oxide property located in
Chihuahua, Mexico, which was acquired in 2000. This project would utilize seime innovative processing methods
to recover zinc by electrowinning frem acid leach solutions after recovery of copper by conventional solvent
extraction/electrowinning (SX/EW). The project is economic at current metal prices and locks very attractive at
long-term average metal prices. Because the project would produce nominally twice as much zinc as copper, and
because the upside in the region is primarily towards increased zinc production, Summo management considers
the Terrazas project an excellent candidate for joint venture with a zinc producer who desires to develop a very
low-cost zinc production base using new hydrometallurgical processing technology.

At Lisbon Valley, we centinue to hold the property on a care and maintenance basis, awaiting higher copper prices
which would allow us to finance the project’s construction. We also continue our efforts to find ways in which
we can leverage the project into production without having to wait for higher copper prices.

Corporately, we recognize the need to access capital to grow the Company, and continue to examine opportuni-
ties which expose our portfolio of projects to interested parties and which provide the Company with potentially
new sources of capital.

This past year has been a difficult one,
but I believe your patience in staying
the course with Summo will bear a LVIE Coppar Brice Nov{Fab'02
return on that investment as copper
prices improve and we continue to

press forward. $0.73
$0.71 {

$0.75

Sincerely, S0 i
$0.67 R[X\
g $0.65 ]1 HJ‘QX\Y/

Gregory A. Hahn
. $0.63

President & CEO
$0.611
$0.59
$0.57
$0.55 T + i T - - r
11/4/2001  11/16/2001  12/4/2001  12/16/2001 12/31/2001 4/15/2002  1/30/2002  2/14/2002




In January 2001 Summo Minerals Corporation anncunced it had entered into agreements to acquire a 48% equity
interest in Matrix Metals Limited (*Matrix”), an Australian-listed public company producing cathode copper via
open pit mining, heap leaching, and SX/EW precessing. In April 2001 the transaction was approved by Matrix
shareholders, and in June 2001 the transaction received all regulatory clearances and was completed.

Vit Cuthbert Heap Leach SX/EW Operation

Matrix operates the Mt Cuthbert open pit heap leach SX/EW copper mine in the Mt Isa-Cloncurry District of
northwestern Queensland, Australia. The mine, with a rated productlon capacity of 5,500 tpa cathode copper, has

operated since it was commissioned in 1996. The
cathode copper is consistently 99.999% LME-
grade quality. Matrix assumed ownership of the
nearly dormant operation in July 2000, and
resumed mining operations in September 2000.

Matrix produced a total of 3,986 tonnes of cop-
per in 2001 at an average cash operating cost of
$0.69/1b., against an average price received of
$0.72/1b. The Mt Cuthbert operation achieved full
design capacity in May 2001, and operated at or
above design capacity through mid-August, when
the decision was made to curtail further mine
production due to depressed copper prices.
Production since mid-August has been from
inventory in the heap. Production will continue
below design capacity until June-July 2002, when
mine production is scheduled tc recommence.

The Mt Cuthbert Mine has resources of 2 million tonnes at an average grade of 1.1% Cu, sufficient for a remain-
ing mine life of 4 years. The Matrix land position in the Mt Cuthbert area is the second largest land position in the

district to that of Mt Isa Mines, a world-class copper and lead/zinc operation located approximately 100 kilome-

ters to the southwest of the Mt Cuthbert opera-
tion. Excellent potential exists to discover addi-
tional reserves on the Matrix tenements.

Wit Watson Copper Oxide Discovery

Matrix commenced drilling on the Mt Watson
copper prospect in June, 2001, and discovered a
new and exciting copper oxide deposit. Mt
Watson is located only 28 kilometers from the Mt
Cuthbert heap leach SX/EW facility, within easy
trucking distance. The first round of exploration
drilling returned ore grade intercepts in 43 of the
87 shallow percussion holes drilled. The drill
hole spacing was sufficient to allow Matrix’ geol-
ogists to calculated an indicated resource of




837,000 tonnes grading 1.3% Cu at a cut-off grade of 0.5% Cu, down to a depth of 25 meters. Drilling has not tested
below that depth.

A second round of shallow percussicn drill holes completed in December 2001 expanded the strike length of the
copper deposit from 650 meters to 1130 meters, and increased the size of the inferred rescurce to 1.3 million

tonnes at 1.3% Cu at a cut-off grade of 0.5% Cu,
| ; and still only down to a depth of 25 meters. The
\ deposit remains open, particularly at depth, and
" © a follow-up round of reverse circulation drilling
began in mid-February 2002 to test the entire
strike length of the deposit to a depth of 50
meters and below.

i
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!

Continued successful drilling of the Mt Watson
resource could justify expansion of the annual
ST ; production capacity of the Mt Cuthbert process-
e g . i r ing facility from 12.5 million pounds to 18.7 mil-
E 5 Lo lion pounds. A feasibility study for this plant

; ; expansion is currently underway. Initial indica-
tions are this plant expansion could lower the
cash operating costs to produce a pound of cop-
per by $0.05-$0.11/1b.

White Range Copper Oxide Development Project

Matrix also owns 100% of the White Range properties, located about 150 kilometers southeast of the Mt Cuthbert
operation. The White Range properties contain measured and indicated resources of +12.6 million tonnes at an
average grade of 1.2% Cu. Additional inferred resources and exploration potential exist along open extensions to
the five copper deposits
which comprise the present

resource. Most of these . ]

resources are amenable to 250 -
mining by open pit. Pre-feasi-

bility studies, engineering ———————t -

design, and column leach |, A / v

tests have been completed | “’%__{’ ///« / ;7 _4
which support the concept of | n A ) i / T
developing the White Range 50.85 pit shell - // / / y ] @ .

Project as an open pit mine |, Y / / “ o

and heap leach SX’EW opera- | AN / A o o
tion with a capacity to pro- Y / o @“ © 1 Ore body

duce +12,000 tpa (+26.5 mil- ' “\/ iy SO [ in-pitwaste

lion pounds per annum) 100 8 oa;o\\"‘ ‘ [ Outpitwaste | |
cathode copper for a mini- “”\/\ ;

mum of 10 years, at an aver- ) 50 Meters

age forecasted cash operating

cost of less than $0.55/b, at  |so0 w w W wl |
current exchange rates. A full 3 g El 5’
feasibility study on the White White & .

Range Project is anticipated ite Range Project

to cﬁmmen“lce in late zooép. Greenmount Copper Deposit - Ore Section 9900N




' TERRAZAS COPPER-ZINC PROJECT, CHIHUAHUA, MEXICO

The Terrazas copper—ziﬁc oxide project is located 45 minutes north of Chihuahua City, in the State of Chihuahua,
Mexico, approximately 150 miles south of El Paso, Texas.

in-House Scoping Study

Summo completed an updated in-house scoping
study in February 2001 for the development of
the Terrazas project as an open pit heap leach
SX-EW copper and zinc operation. The study
called for a 10-year mine life with average annual
production of 40 million pounds of cathcde cop-
per and 66 million pounds of zinc as SHG ingots.
Recoveries were projected at 85% for copper and
77% for zinc. Cash operating costs were fore-
casted at $0.42/1b. of copper produced (with zinc
credits), with an initial capital cost of $75 mil-
lion. The operation was projected to have a
NPV@10% of $51 million at metal prices of
$0.95/1b. copper and $0.50/1b. zinc.

jacobs Engineering Pre-Feasibility Study
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Based upon the results of the in-house study the Board of Directors approved commencement in March 2001 of
a third party pre-feasibility study to verify the results of the in-house scoping study, further quantify the project
operating parameters and identify areas where additional work is required to bring the project through a full
feasibility study. Jacobs Engineering Group was awarded the contract to prepare the pre-feasibility study. In
addition, various components of the study were awarded to other third-party engineering groups (ore reserves,

mine plans/production schedules, mine operat-

[

ing and capital costs, design and construction
costs for heap leach pads and ponds, water
availability and supply, permitting and reclama-
tion, metallurgical testing, and zinc recovery and
cost estimation).

Jacobs Engineering and the various other con-
tractors completed the pre-feasibility study on
the Terrazas copper-zinc oxide project in
February 2002. The study calls for an average
annual production of 18,000 tpa cathode copper
(39.7 million pounds per annum) and 27,000 tpa
SHG zinc (59.5 million pounds per annum) over
an 11 year mine life, from a minable resource of
58.3 million tonnes grading 0.353% Cu and 0.570%




Zn within a fully engineered pit at a strip ratio of
0.62:1.

Metallurgical tests confirm average total recov-
eries of 83.3% of the contained copper and 70% of
the contained zinc by acid heap leach at a crush
size of -3/4”. Recovery of copper will be via con-
ventional SX/EW, with copper being produced as
LME grade cathode. Recovery of zinc will be by
processing of a zinc-rich bleed off the copper raf-
} finate, iron reduction through the addition of
e zinc dust, electrowinning of zinc as a powder,
’ and melting and casting as SHG ingots. Cash
, : operating costs are projected to average $0.35/1b.
B - — ‘ for copper and $0.25/1b. for zinc over the life of
the project. These cash operating costs are well
within the lowest quartile of copper and zinc pro-
duction costs worldwide. Initial capital for construction of the operation is estimated at $136 million, including
EPCM and contractor’s profit, and a 10% contingency. The Jacobs study assigns a NPV@10% of $69 million at a
copper price of $0.95/1b. and a zinc price of $0.50/1b.

Additional Area Potential

Known additional satellite zinc resources in the vicinity of the Terrazas project total approximately 1.5 billion
pounds of zinc, much of which is amenable to extraction by acid leach and recovery by the proposed facility at
the Terrazas project. These resources are located either on the rail line which adjoins the Terrazas project and
within 60 kilometers distance, or within similar trucking distance from the Terrazas project. As stand alone proj-
ects they are marginally attractive, but they represent possible feed to either expand zinc preduction to +50,000
tpa and/or extend the mine life beyond 11 years at the Terrazas prcject. Their presence and availability should
enhance the attractiveness to a mid-tier or major zinc producer of developing the Terrazas project.

The Terrazas property represents the third-
largest known undeveloped copper oxide
deposit in Mexico, and has excellent logistics
and infrastructure. Aside from being lccated 4
kilocmeters from a 4-lane highway 45 minutes N
from Chihuahua, the property has a 115 kv B .. X
power line and a railroad siding immediately Ge o VT o
adjacent to the property, and abundant ground- o
water both in bedrock aquifers on the property Sl
and in the valley-fill alluvium 2 kilometers to the
west. | s

Summe will actively seek a joint venture partner BN W F
who can take the Terrazas Project through final ‘
feasibility and intc production.




" LISBON VALLEY COPPER PROJECT.

The Lisbon Valley Copper Project is located in San Juan County, Utah, approximately 50 miles southeast of the
town of Moab. The Winters Company completed a bankable feasibility study update on the project in October
2000 which estimates cash operating costs
of $0.47/1b. of copper and economic viabil-

f

o s Senfimel B, ity at a copper price above $0.85/lb, at an
| ¥ - ; ce L annual production capacity of 40 million
N~ S ;FW@S@’W Ty € pounds of copper.

Summo continues to hold the Lisbon Valley
Project on a care and maintenance basis.
We have all of the permits required by the
appropriate federal and state agencies to
commence construction and proceed to
mine production, which we intend to do

Sefgctile, "~

N
Y

: Waste 0y k— '\a/ \‘ RN

‘ A he \\H once copper prices improve sufficiently to
’ : g 2 N allow the Company to secure financing for
. ~— construction. We continue our groundwater

monitoring program at Lisbon Valley in
order to maintain all of our operating per-
mits in good standing.

Copper Powder Venture

We continue to examine ways to leverage the economics of the project in a depressed copper market. In the First
Quarter 2001 we entered into a joint agreement with an internationally renowned electronics company and a
large international metal refiner and producer of metal powder to complete a bankable feasibility study for
- development of a North American based electrolytic copper powder business that would utilize the Lisbon Valley
property and develop the contained ore deposits as a dedicated source for the production of metal powders,
rather than copper cathode sheets. Roughly two-thirds of the way through the study the parties agreed to termi-
nate the study and the agreement. The continuing slide in the copper market rendered this alternative for devel-
opment of the Lisbon Valley project less attractive than waiting for copper prices to improve and proceeding with
development of the project as a mine-for-leach and solvent extraction-electrowinning (SX/EW) facility producing
LME-grade cathode copper.

Used Equipment Option

During the Third Quarter 2001 Summo’s management team considered a strategy to develop the Lisbon Valley
Copper Project utilizing used equipment, particularly for crushing, conveying and stacking, and re-scheduling
mine output and cathode copper production to match the several suites of good used equipment which manage-
ment had identified as available. This alternative development scenario holds considerable promise, and lowers
the initial capital requirements to proceed with construction by potentially tens of millions of dollars. However,
the continued slide of the copper price and the lack of capital (debt and equity) for investment in the junior min-
ing sector remain as overriding factors in not proceeding with development of the project at this time.




Disposal of Atlas Mill Tallings At Lisbon Valley

In January 2002 management submitted a proposal to the Department of Energy and the National Academy of
Sciences tc take delivery of the Atlas Mill uranium tailings at the Lisbon Valley project. The Atlas Mill tailings are
currently stored at the Atlas Mill tailings impoundment facility in Moab, Utah, along the banks of the Colorade
River. The Department of Energy has taken cwnership of the tailings, and produced a Draft Preliminary Plan for
Remediation of the tailings in October 2001. The National Academy of Sciences has been commissioned by the
US Congress to review the draft plan and comment on the plan and alternatives. The plan outlines two options
for remediation of the tailings: capping them in piace for an estimated cost of $135 million, or moving them to a
new repository 20 miles north of Moab for an estimated cost of $350 million. Local sentiment is overwhelmingly
in favor or moving the tailings, but the ecc-

nomic realities of the cost difference |
between the two alternatives are difficult |
for government to reconcile. |

|
i
Summeo has formally offered an alternative ‘
which would allow for removal of the tail- /
ings from the current site along the .
Colorado River, transportation of the tail- 5 r
ings by truck (road-train) along existing !
public access to Lisbon Valley, a distance |
of 50 miles, and deposition of the tailings
as a lower layer within our proposed lined |
heap leach facility. Total cost of this alter- |
native is estimated at $125-$150 million, | |
including full construction of the Lisbon \‘
Valley Copper Project, or nominelly the x‘
same as the cost of capping the tailings in
place. Management maintains that thisisa ] J
" viable and economically, environmentally,
and socially compelling alternative, which
the Department of Energy will consider as one of cnly three or four alternatives for remediation of the tailings.
Under our proposal, the Lisbon Valley Copper Project would be economically viable at today’s copper price.

The National Academy of Sciences has been briefed on Summeo’s proposal, and will report to the Department of
Energy and the US Congress by mid-2002. The Department of Energy is scheduled to make its final recommen-
dation for remediation of the Atlas Mill tailings by year-end 2002. That is the earliest Summo would be informed
as to whether or not its proposal would be considered the preferred alternative for remediation of the Atlas Mill
uranium tailings.

Lisbon Valley Reserves

Deposit Ore Tons Crade % Cu Cu lbs Contained Strip Ratio
Sentinel 6,156,000 0.325% 40,014,000 0.48:1
Centennial 27,986,000 0.534% 298,890,000 2.31:1
CTO 2,601,000 0.744% 38,703,000 5.73:1
Totel @ $0.90 Cu 36,743,000 0.574% 377,607,000 2.25:1
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March 15, 2002

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared by
management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada, and con-
tain estimates based on management’s judgement. Management maintains an appropriate system
of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets
safeguarded, and proper records maintained.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has met with the Company’s auditors to review
the scope and results of the annual audit and to review the consolidated financial statements
and related financial reporting matters prior to subniitting the consolidated financial statements
to the Board for approval.

The Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, are appointed by the shareholders to
conduct an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, and their
report follows.

JWW

Gregory A. Hahn J. Christopher Mitchell
President, Chief Executive Officer - Executive Vice President,
and Director Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary

11




Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
Summo Minerals Corporation

We have audited the consclidated balance sheets of Summo Minerals Corporation as at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the consolidated statements of loss and deficit, mineral prop-
erty costs and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsi-
bility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an cpinion on these finan-
cial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards reguire that we plan and perform an audit t¢ obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. As required by the British Columbia Company Act, we report
that, in our opinicn, these principles have been applied on a consistent basis.

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, B.C., Canada
March 15, 2002, except as to note 18(d),
which is as of April 2, 2002

- +° NV

\X
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at December 31, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

2001 2000
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 80,657 617,920
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 16,828 47,419
97,485 665,339
Property, plant and equipment (note 4) 3,431,483 3,475,899
Mineral property cests (note 5) 10,677,724 9,692,205
Investments (note 6) 4,379,774 160,000
Deferred financing costs (note 8) 1,209,581 769,004
19,796,047 14,762,447
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 469,159 243,987
Long-term debt and related party transactions (note 7) 12,650,000 5,400,000
13,119,159 5,643,987
Shareholders’ Equity
Capital stock (note 9) 16,566,742 16,014,779
Equity component of unexercised warrants (note 11) 1,617,775 923,719
Interest and fees to be settied with common shares (note 7(d)) 324,453 251,074
Deficit (11,832,082) (8,071,112)
6,676,888 9,118,460
19,796,047 14,762,447

Going concern (note 1)
Commitments and contingencies (note 13)

Subsequent events (note 18)

Approved by the Board of Directors
(Jﬂéwly,a,téhﬁ«/ Director /‘*w—% LA Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

Expenses

Consulting

Depreciation and amortization
Exploration

Foreign exchange loss
Interest and bank charges (note 14)
Legal, accounting and audit
Listing and filing fees

Office and facilities

Salaries

Shareholder information
Travel and promotion

Eguity in losses of associated company (note 6(b))
Write-down of mineral properties (note 5(c))
Write-down of investments (note 6(a))

Loss for the year

Deficit - Beginning of year

Deficit - End of year
Basic and diluted loss per share

Weighted average number of shares

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2001 2000

$ $

88,331 159,527
16,678 24,703
84,906 -
368 3,424
924,225 636,953
97,194 73,648
64,142 58,308
126,448 128,240
824,236 394,872
31,049 18,936
84,052 66,134
2,341,629 1,564,745
1,259,341 -
- 104,477

160,000 640,000
3,760,970 2,309,222
8,071,112 5,761,890
11,832,082 8,071,112
0.07 0.06
54,614,318 36,808,751
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Mineral Property Costs
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 20600

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

2001 2600
$ $
Lisbon Valley, Utah, USA .
Land costs 47,769 54,596
Geophysical, geological and engineering - 13,627
Drilling 1,925 261,415
Metallurgy - 7,315
Feasibility - 233,729
Permitting 50,333 86,007
Support, accommodation and general costs 227,983 218,851
328,010 875,440
Terrazas, Chihuahua, Mexico
Land costs 145,096 107,266
Geophysical, geological and engineering 22,112 89,420
Drilling 5,669 246,203
Metallurgy 180,624 28,890
Feasibility 142,472 4,837
Permitting 19,608 6,580
Support, accommodation and general costs 141,928 101,346
657,609 584,542
Doctor Mine, Colorado, USA
Land costs - 54,261
Geophysical, geological and engineering - 10,913
Permitting - 4,460
Support, accommodation and general costs - 495
- 70,129
Costs for the year 985,519 1,630,111
Balance - Beginning of year 9,692,205 8,266,571
Write-down of mineral properties (note 5(c)) - (104,477
Balance - End of year 10,677,724 9,692,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 3L, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Items not affecting cash

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred financing charges
Interest paid and payable in shares
Equity in losses of associated companies
Write-down of mineral properties
Write-down of investment

Change in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Cash flows from investing activities

Loan to Matrix Metals Limited

Equity investment in Matrix Metals Limited
Expenditures on mineral properties

Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment
Recovery of equipment deposit

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital, net of issue costs
Proceeds from notes payable to related parties, net of cash fees

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginming of year
Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

Supplemental cash flow information (note 14)

2001 2000
$ $
(3,760,970) (2,309,222)
16,678 24,703
309,507 219,719
625,342 467,083
1,259,341
; 104,477
160,000 640,000
(1,390,102) (853,240)
30,591 (43,623)
225,172 184,475
255,763 140,852
(1,134,339) (712,388)
(1,673,900) -
(3,965,215) -
(985,519) (1,530,111)
(7,262) (15,127)
35,000 340,934
(6,596,896) (1,204,304)
- 1,250,000
7,193,972 631,899
7,193,972 1,881,899
(537,263) (34,793)
617,920 652,713
80,657 617,920

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 2000
(expressed in U.S. dollars)

1 Going concern

Summo Minerals Corporation (the “Company”) is currently involved in the exploration and development of copper
properties within Australia, Mexico and the United States. To date, the Company has not had significant revenues and
is considered to be in the pre-development stage.

As at December 31, 2001, the Company has a working capital deficiency of $371,674. Without a source of funding, the
Company will be unable to meet its obligations as they fall due, continue operations and complete the exploration and
development of its mineral properties. The Company is in the process of attempting to raise funds to do this, however
there is no assurance that the Company will be successful. In the absence of continued financial support from the
Company’s major shareholder, Resource Capital Funds (“RCF™) (notes 2, 7 and 18(d)), these difficult conditions
present substantial doubt concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the
Company will be able to realize assets and discharge liabilities in the normal course of business for the foreseeable
future. These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

The Company is in the process of exploring and developing its mineral properties and, with the exception of Lisbon
Valley, has not yet determined whether the properties contain reserves that are economically recoverable. The
recoverability of the amounts shown for mineral properties and related deferred costs is dependent upon the
existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete
the development, and upon future profitable production or proceeds from disposition of the mineral properties. The
amounts shown as mineral property costs represent net costs to date, less amounts amortized and written down, and
do not necessarily represent future values.

2 Ownership <

The Company has entered into several loan agreements with St. Mary Minerals Inc. (“St. Mary™), Resource Capital
Fund, L.P. (“RCF I") and Resource Capital Fund I, L.P. (“RCF II"} (note 7). At December 31, 2001, RCF I owned
approximately 48.1% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common shares, St. Mary owned approximately 15.8%,
and RCF II owned approximately 9.1% of the Company’s issued and outstanding common shares. On a diluted basis,
assuming RCF I, St. Mary and RCF II exercised all of their warrants, their ownership of the Company's common shares
as at December 31, 2001 would be approximately 40.9%, 15.8%, and 34.8%, respectively.

3 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consclidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
Summo USA Corporation (“Summo USA™) (a Colorado corporation), Mojave Gold Corporation (a British Columbia
company), Minera Terrazas S.A. de C.V. (a company incorporated in the state of Sinaloa, Mexico), Lisbon Valley
Mining Co., LLC (a Utah limited liability company), Doctor Mine Co., LLC (a Colorado limited liability company), and
Compaifiia Minera Summo Minerals-Chile Limitada (a Chilean limited liability partnership).

At December 31, 2001, the Company owned approximately 42.6% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of
Matrix Metals Limited (“Matrix™), whose shares trade on the Australian Stock Exchange (note 6(b)). The Company
accounts for its interest in Matrix using the equity method.
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 2000
(expressed in U.S. dollars)

Currency

The United States dollar is the principal currency of the Company’s business. Accordingly, all amounts in these
consolidated financial statements are expressed in U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method. Under this method, future income tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and the amounts
reported in the financial statements. The future tax assets or liabilities are calculated using the tax rates for the
periods in which the differences are expected to reverse. Future tax assets are recognized to the extent that they are
considered more likely than not to be realized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments which, on acquisition, have a term to maturity of three months or
less, and are not subject to significant risk from changes in interest rates. The Company restricts investment of cash
balances to financial institutions with high credit standing. To date, these concentrations of credit risk have not had a
significant effect on the Company'’s financial position or results of operations.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent original costs of office furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and
software, leasehold improvements, and capitalized crganization costs less depreciation and amortization computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset or, in the case of leasehold improvements,
over the remaining lease-term. Estimated lives range from three to seven years.

Construction in progress relates to the Lisbon Valley project and is stated at cost. No depreciation is calculated on
these balances until the assets to which they relate are put into service.

Investments

Investments in companies over which the Company can exercise significant influence are accounted for using the
equity method. Other investments that are considered to be long-term in nature are valued at cost unless there is
considered to be a permanent impairment in value.

Mineral properties

The Company capitalizes costs for its mineral properties. Mineral exploration and development costs are capitalized
on an individual project basis until such time as the economics of an ore body are defined. If production commences,
these costs will be amortized on a units of production basis over the estimated ore reserves. Unrecoverable costs for
projects determined to be commercially not feasible are expensed in the year in which the determination is made.
The costs of exploration programs not anticipated to result in additions to the Company’s reserves are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 20060
(expressed in U.S. dollars)

The recoverability of amounts capitalized for undeveloped mineral properties is subject to regular review by the
Company’s management and is dependent upon the determination of economically recoverable ore reserves,
confirmation of the Company’s interest in the underlying mineral claims, the ability to obtain the necessary financing
to complete their development and future profitable production, or proceeds from the disposition of the properties.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, according to
the industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these procedures do not guarantee the

Company’s title. Such properties may be subject to prior undetected agreements or transfers and title may be affected
by such defects.

Capitalization of interest

The Company does not capitalize interest expense, but may elect to do so for interest expense incurred on monies
borrowed to finance the development and construction of its mineral projects.

Stock option plans

The Company maintains an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”) as described in note 10. No compensation
expense is recognized for the Plan when stock options are issued. Any consideration paid on the exercise of stock
options is credited to capital stock.

Warrants

Warrants issued in connection with debt financing are assigned a fair value (note 11) which is included in deferred
financing costs. Warrants issued as part of a share unit are not valued.

Deferred financing costs

Deferred financing costs consist of the value assigned to warrants (note 11) issued in connection with certain related
party transactions, in addition to other costs incurred in obtaining financing. Deferred financing costs are amortized
over the life of the financing to which they relate.

Foreign currency translation

The integrated Australian, Canadian and Mexican operations of the Company are translated into United States dollars
using the temporal method, which translates monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end exchange rate and
translates revenue and expenses at average exchange rates for the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing when the assets were acquired or the liabilities were assumed.
Translation gains or losses are included in the determination of loss for the year.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during
the year. The Company has adopted the revised recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants, whereby new rules are applied in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. The revised standard has
been applied on a retroactive basis and did not result in any restaternent of the Company’s financial statements.

Basic and diluted losses per share are the same, as the effect of potentlal issuances of shares under warrant or share
option agreements would be anti-dilutive.
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December 31, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

4 Property, plant and equipment

Details of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures

Computer software

Computer hardware

Construction in progress — Lishcn Valley

Office furniture and fixtures

Computer software

Computer hardware

Leasehold improvements

Construction in progress — Lisbon Valley

5 Mineral property costs

2001

Accumulated

depreciation
Cost and amortization Net
$ $ $
27,888 18,939 8,949
36,615 35,066 549
30,535 28,313 2,222
3,419,763 - 3,419,763
3,613,801 82,318 3,431,483
2000

Accumulated

depreciation
Cost and amortization Net
$ $ $
40,027 36,048 3,979
39,605 34,837 4,768
50,237 37,848 12,389
13,515 13,515 -
3,454,763 - 3,454,763
3,598,147 122,248 3,475,899

The Company’s interests in mineral properties, which are in the United States and Mexico, are as follows:

Lisbon Valley, Utah, USA (a)
Terrazas, Chihuahua, Mexico (b)

a) Lisbon Valley, Utah, USA

The Lisbon Valley project, located approximately 40 miles southeast of Moab, Utah, is a copper coxide property

2001 2000

$ $
9,420,832 0,002,822
1,256,892 599,383
10,677,724 9,692,205

that would be mined by open pit mining methods. Heap-leaching with sulphuric acid would leach the copper

from the ore, and solvent extraction and electrowinning would be used to recover the copper from solution. A
feasibility study has been completed on the project, and all necessary permits to construct and operate the project

have been issued. A production decision has been deferred, pending an improvement in the price of copper.

ol
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 2000

{expressed in U.S. dollars)

b)

The underlying subleases, leases or agreements for those portions of the Lisbon Valley property that contain
mineable reserves are summarized as follows:

Royalties and

Property Expiry rental payments

Brinton & Knowles N/A $0.15 per wet ton of ore royalty on portions of
Estate the Sentinel and Centennial deposits

Tintic October 15, 2003 with unlimited 3% of net smelter returns with minimum

additional 10-year terms subject to payments of $_l,000 per year
minimum work requirements

Utah State Lease December 31, 2004 unless minerals 4% of gross proceeds with a minimum annual
#ML20569 are then being produced in payment of $7,875

commercial quantities
Utah State Lease December 31, 2004 unless minerals 4% of gross proceeds with a minimum annual
#ML17661 are then being produced in payment of $2,625

commercial quantities

The Company has five additional subleases, leases or agreements for portions of the Lisbon Valley property that
do not currently contain mineable reserves.

The Company has notes payable to related parties collateralized by the Lisbon Valley property (note 7).
Terrazas, Chihuahua, Mexico

On April 25, 2000, the Company executed an Exploration Agreement with an Option to Purchase the Terrazas
copper-zinc oxide property in Chihuahua, Mexico. Terms include a seven-year option period with a buyout of 100%
of the property upon commencement of production, or at any time prior to expiry of the option period, for a price
of $3 million. The Company is required to carry out at least $2 million in work on the property during the option
term, Expenditures during 2001 were approximately $657,500 (2000 - $585,000). The vendor has retained a 1.5% net
sales royalty, which increases to 2% if the copper price is at or above $1.00 per pound. As at December 31, 2001,
determination of economically recoverable ore reserves had not been completed for the property. See also note
18(c).

The Company has notes payable to related parties collateralized by the Terrazas property (note 7).

Other

During the year ended Deceraber 31, 2000, the Company abandoned its interests in the Doctor Mine project and
the Copper Spur property, both located in Colorado. Accordingly, total costs of $104,477 incurred on these
projects were written off.
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(expressed in U.S. dollars)

6 Investments

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s investments at December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
$ $
Cost:
Investment in Nord (a) - 160,000
Equity:
Investment in Matrix (b)
Shares, advances, fees and expenses 3,995,437 -
Loan 1,711,154 -
Equity in loss, before interest received on loan to Matrix (1,326,817) -
4,379,774 160,000
a) Nord

b)

At December 31, 2000, the Company elected to write down the carrying value of its investment in Nord Resources
Corporation (“Nord™) by $640,000 to $160,000 to reflect what it considered to be a permanent impairment in value.
In light of Nord’s financial position, the Company elected in 2001 to write down the carrying value of the Nord
investment to $nil.

Matrix

Matrix is a mining company whose ordinary shares are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange (the “ASX").
Matrix owns properties containing copper oxide deposits, open pit mines and a processing plant in northwestern
Queensland, Australia, producing copper cathodes that are sold on the Australian market.

At December 31, 2001, the Company owned 25,617,550 ordinary shares of Matrix, representing a 42.6% ownership
interest. On December 28, 2001 (the last trading day of 2001 on the ASX), the quoted market price of the ordinary
shares of Matrix was Aus. $0.08 per share, placing a nominal value of approximately $1,048,000 on the Company’s
shareholding in Matrix at year-end.

The Company acquired its interest in Matrix as a result of the transactions discussed below.

On January 24, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Share Sale Agreement”) with Murchison
United NL (“Murchison”) and Majestic Resources NL (“Majestic”). The latter two companies owned, respectively,
40% and 8% of the ordinary shares of Matrix. Pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement, the Company agreed to
purchase the Matrix shares owned by Murchison and Majestic for approximately $0.12 (Aus. $0.24 ) per ordinary
share, for a total cash consideration of $2,981,520 (Aus. $5,904,000), which payment was made June 1, 2001.

Also on January 24, 2001, the Company and Matrix entered into an agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to lend Matrix Aus. $3,250,000 at LIBOR plus 3%. The loan, which is denominated in U.S. dollars, was
advanced in three tranches: (i) $261,250 (Aus. $500,000) on February 23, 2001; (ii) $377,250 (Aus. $750,000) on
April 11, 2001 and (iii) $1,035,400 (Aus. $2,000,000) on June 27, 2001. The loan will be due and payable June 30,
2002, and under certain circumstances, Matrix can elect to repay the loan by issuing shares to the Company at a
price of Aus. $0.16 per ordinary share. As additicnal consideration, Matrix granted the Company an option to
purchase 3,000,000 ordinary shares at an exercise price of Aus. $0.25 per share, expiring June 30, 2003.
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In 2001, the Company earned $67,476 of interest on the Aus. $3,250,000 loan to Matrix, of which $30,222 was
settled by Matrix issuing 517,550 shares on October 9, 2001. Of the balance of $37,254, $22,861 was settled by the
issuance of 1,982,450 shares and $4,598 was settled in cash after the year-end (note 18(a)). The balance of the
interest earned is to be settled in cash after the year-end.

The monies used by the Company to pay for the Matrix shares and fund the loan to Matrix were provided by RCF
I, pursuant to a credit agreement dated March 6, 2001 (the “RCF II Bridge Facility”) (note 7(b)). RCF II has a first
priority security interest and RCF I and St. Mary have a second priority security interest in the Matrix shares, the
indebtedness of Matrix to the Company and all of the Matrix assets (see notes 7(a) and 7(b)).

During the Fourth Quarter, the Company advanced Matrix an additional Aus. $1,000,000 in two installments,
$130,075 (Aus. $250,000) on October 17, 2001, and $394,575 (Aus. $750,000) on November 16, 2001. These funds
were advanced on an unsecured basis and were not interest-bearing. Subsequent to the advances being made,
Matrix completed a financing by way of a private placement of Matrix shares for approximately Aus. $2,600,000 at
a price of Aus. $0.07 per share. The placement was completed in two tranches, the first, for Aus. $537,700, closed
on December 12, 2001. The Company did not participate in this tranche. The second tranche, which closed on
January 18, 2002, was for Aus. $2,068,910, and included a subscription by the Company for 14,285,715 shares at
Aus. $0.07 per share, or a total of Aus. $1,000,000, being the amount of the Company’s unsecured advances to
Matrix (see note 18(a)).

In mid-December 2001, the Company purchased 500,000 shares of Matrix on the open market for $19,295.

At the date of acquisition of the Matrix shares pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement, June 1, 2001, the cost of the
investment in Matrix exceeded the underlying net book value of the assets acquired by approximately $768,000.
This amount has been allocated to Matrix’ mineral properties and will be amortized over the life of those
properties.

Matrix has a June 300 year-end, which is not co-terminous with the Company’s December 315t year-end.

The only significant event that has occurred at Matrix since its year-end was the completion of the Aus. $2,600,000
private placement referred to above. The placement resulted in the issuance of a total of 37,237,027 additional
ordinary shares of Matrix, all of which were issued for a consideration of Aus. $0.07 per share. In addition, on
February 20, 2002, Matrix issued 18,083,856 “bonus” options to shareholders with addresses in Australia and

New Zealand, and to the Company, on the basis of one bonus option for each five ordinary shares held of record
on February 19, 2002. Each bonus option entitles the holder thereof to purchase one ordinary share of Matrix at a
price of Aus. $0.20 per share. The bonus options trade on the ASX, and expire on February 14, 2003.

7 Long-term debt and related party transactions

At December 31, 2001, the Company’s long term indebtedness was $12,650,000 (2000 - $5,400,000). All of such
indebtedness is owed to related parties, is collateralized by liens on the Company’s assets, and is due at maturity.
There are no sinking fund requirements. Interest is payable on the loans semi-annually, and the Company may, at its
option and in the absence of a condition of default, elect to pay interest in cash or in shares based upon the weighted
average trading price per share at which the Company’s shares have traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the
“TSE™). The following table summarizes information respecting such long term indebtedness at December 31, 2001
and 2000:

23




SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

2001 2000
Principal Principal
Interest rate  Maturity date outstanding outstanding
‘ $ $
St Mary and RCF I (a)

St. Mary 30-day LIBOR + 2.56% July 1, 2004 1,400,000 1,400,000
RCFI 30-day LIBOR + 2.5% July 1, 2004 4,000,000 4,000,000
RCF 1I Bridge Facility (b) U.S. Prime + 0.25% Dec. 31, 2005 6,650,000 -

RCF II Working Capital Loan
Facility (c) 30-day LIBOR + 4.0% Dec. 31, 2005 600,000 -
12,650,000 5,400,000

a)

b)

Note payable to related parties — St Mary and RCF I

Pursuant to an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between the Company and Summo USA as Borrowers,
and St. Mary and RCF I as Lenders, the Lenders agreed to lend the Company up to $4,000,000 of new funds and
restructure $1,400,000 of existing credit.

The Company granted 67,500,000 warrants attached to the note payable to the Lenders (note 11). The Company
valued these warrants at $923,719, with the debit being recorded as deferred financing costs. If the warrants are
exercised, the Company is required to apply the funds received from the exercise of the warrants to pay down the
note payable. During 2000, RCF 1 exercised 9,195,000 warrants, and waived its right to have the Company apply
the proceeds of $750,000 to reduce the amount owed under the note payable.

The note payable is collateralized by a lien on the Lisbon Valley property, the Nord shares and a general charge
over all of the Company’s assets, including a second priority security interest in the Matrix shares, the indebted-
ness of Matrix to the Company and all of the Matrix assets. St. Mary and RCF I have agreed to subordinate their
respective security interests to persons providing project financing for the construction and operation of
commercial mining and processing facilities for the Lisbon Valley copper project, the Terrazas copper-zinc project
and the Matrix projects.

Note payable to related party — RCF [T Bridge Facility

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the RCF II Bridge Facility, RCF II agreed to lend the Company up to
$5,750,000. This facility was amended on August 1, 2001 to increase the principal amount to $6,650,000.

The Company issued 28,775,000 warrants to RCF II as described in note 11, including 2,000,000 warrants as a fee
for establishing the RCF II Bridge Facility. The Company assigned a fair value of $11,271 to the 2,000,000 warrants.
A fair value of $555,891 was assigned to the other 26,775,000 warrants. A further 9,000,000 warrants are issuable
as consideration for the August 1, 2001 amendment to the facility. These warrants were assigned a fair value of
$126,894. In each instance, the assigned value was recorded as deferred financing costs. Proceeds received from
the exercise of any of the warrants must be used to pay down the outstanding principal amount of the facility.

The facility is collateralized by a lien on the shares of Matrix owned by the Company, the indebtedness of Matrix
to the Company, and all of the Matrix assets. RCF II also has a second priority security interest over the
Company’s Lisbon Valley and Terrazas mineral properties. RCF II has agreed to subordinate its security interests
to persons providing project financing for the construction and operation of commercial mining and processing
facilities for the Lisbon Valley copper project, the Terrazas copper-zinc project and the Matrix projects.
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c)

d)

Note payable to related party - RCF II Working Capital Loan Facility

On November 15, 2001, the Company and RCF II entered into a letter agreement (the “Working Capital Loan
Facility”) pursuant to which RCF II advanced the sum of $600,000 to the Company on November 16, 2001. RCF II
has the option to convert the principal amount of the facility into shares of the Company at a conversion price of
Cdn. $0.055 per share at any time on or before December 31, 2005.

The purpose of the loan was to provide working capital to the Company, and to enable the Company to advance
Aus. $750,000 to Matrix as described in note 6(b). The Company has agreed to issue 300,000 of the Company’s
common shares to RCF II as an establishment fee, none of which had been issued as at December 31, 2001.

The facility ranks pari passu with the RCF 1I Bridge Facility and the Company has agreed that it will not issue
equity to third parties in the six month period commencing November 16, 2001 at a price less than Cdn. $0.055 per
share.

Interest and fees to be settled with common shares

At December 31, 2001, the Company had accrued interest and fees owing on the notes payable to related parties of
$324,453. The accrued interest and fees comprise the following: $151,282 payable to St. Mary and RCF I; $164,783
payable to RCF II on the Bridge Facility; $4,618 payable to RCF II on the Working Capital Loan Facility, and $3,770
attributable to the value of the 300,000 shares issuable to RCF II as the fee for establishing the Working Capital
Loan Facility. The Company intends to settle these amounts subsequent to the year end through the issuance of
shares.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had accrued interest on the notes payable to related parties of $251,074,
which was settled subsequent to year-end through the issuance of 6,356,312 shares.

8 Deferred financing costs

At December 31, deferred financing costs comprise the following:

2001 2000

Assigned fair value of warrants $ $
Issued to St. Mary and RCF I for note payable (note 7(a)) 923,719 923,719
Issued to RCF II for Bridge Facility (note 7(b)) 567,162 -
Issued to RCF II for amendment to Bridge Facility (note 7(b)) 126,894 -
1,617,775 923,719

Other financing fees 230,892 174,864
Accumulated amortization included in interest and bank charges (639,086) (329,579)
Balance at December 31 1,209,581 769,004
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9 Capital stock

Authorized
100,000,000 preferred shares, no par value
500,000,000 common shares, no par value

2001 2000
Number of Number of
Common shares shares Amoumnt shares Amoumnt
$ $
Balance - Beginning of year 46,258,864 16,014,779 27,994,656 14,373,911
Issued during the year:

For cash - - 3,850,000 500,000
Upon exercise of warrants - - 9,195,000 750,000

In payment of interest:
To St. Mary and RCF I 9,186,151 462,156 5,219,208 390,863
To RCF II 1,332,159 89,807 - -
Balance - End of year 56,777,174 - 16,566,742 46,258,864 16,014,779

On December 22, 2000, the Company completed a private placement with RCF II of 3,850,000 units for gross proceeds
of $500,000. Each unit consisted of one common share and one-half of a warrant.

During 2000, RCF I exercised 9,195,000 of the warrants issued pursuant to the note payable to St. Mary and RCF I
(note 7(a)) at an exercise price of Cdn. $0.12 per share for gross proceeds of $750,000.

During 2001, the Company settled $462,156 (2000 - $390,868) of interest on the note payable to St. Mary and RCF I
(note 7(a)) by issuing 9,186,151 (2000 - 5,219,208) common shares at an average price of Cdn. $0.0762 (2000 - Cdn.
$0.1096) per share.

During 2001, the Company settled $89,807 of interest through July 31, 2001 on the RCF II Bridge Facility (note 7(b))
by issuing 1,332,159 common shares at an average price of Cdn. $0.10365 per share.

The average price per share for shares issued in settlement of interest expense is based upon the weighted average
trading price per share at which the Company’s shares have traded on the TSE.

The Company was committed to issue 7,565,073 shares at December 31, 2001 (2000 - 6,356,312 shares) in settlement of
interest coming due on such date on the note payable to St Mary and RCF I (note 7(d)). In addition, at December 31,
2001, the Company was committed to issue 300,000 shares as an establishment fee on the RCF II Working Capital Loan
Facility (note 7(c)).

\\\] 26




SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2001 and 2000

(expressed in U.S. dollars)

10 Stock options

The Company maintains an Incentive Stock Option Plan. The Plan is administered in accordance with the policies of
the TSE. The shareholders have approved the reservation of 6,000,000 common shares for issuance under the Plan.

The Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board on granting stock options to employees, officers
and directors. Stock options are granted for a term of five years and, except for certain stock options that were
granted in 2000, vest as follows: 25% vesting upon granting and an additional 25% vesting on each of the first through
third anniversaries of the grants. Options granted to officers in 2000 vested as to 50% immediately upon granting, with
the balance vesting on the first anniversary of the grants. The exercise price of each option is not less than the market
price of the Company’s shares on the day of the grant.

The following table summarizes activity in the Plan during 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
shares price shares price
Cdn. $ Cdn. $

Balance outstanding — Beginning
of year 3,317,500 0.16 3,317,600 0.25
Granted 2,450,000 0.20 1,500,000 0.20
Expired (617,500) 0.15 (1,500,000) 0.39
Balance outstanding — End of year 5,150,000 0.18 3,317,600 0.16
Balance exercisable — End of year 3,625,000 0.18 2,217,500 0.15

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2001:

Number of Weighted Number of

Exercise options average options

price outstanding remaining life exercisable
Cdn. $ (years)

0.10 600,000 2.6 600,000

0.15 600,000 2.6 300,000

0.20 3,950,000 4.0 2,625,000

5,150,000 3.6 3,625,000
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Warrants

In connection with related party loan agreements (note 7), the Company has issued certain warrants. These warrants
have been assigned a fair value, which is recorded as deferred financing costs of the related loan (note 8).

Warrants to purchase 17,500,000 and 50,000,000 common shares exercisable at Cdn. $0.12 per share until June 25, 2004
were issued to St. Mary and RCF I, respectively, as part of the consideration for those entities entering into a note
payable (note 7(a)). A total of 9,195,000 warrants were exercised during 2000. No warrants were exercised during
2001.

Warrants to purchase 1,925,000 common shares exercisable at Cdn. $0.20 per share until January 8, 2003 were issued
to RCF II in connection with RCF 1I purchasing 3,850,000 units at Cdn. $0.20 per unit on December 22, 2000 (note 9).
None of these warrants were exercised through December 31, 2001.

As consideration for RCF 1I entering into the RCF II Bridge Facility (note 7(b)), the Company issued 28,775,000
warrants to RCF II to purchase 28,775,000 common shares exercisable at Cdn. $0.20 per share. Of these warrants,
2,000,000 were issued as an establishment fee and vested immediately. The remaining warrants vest in RCF II on an
accelerating basis over time in accordance with a pre-determined schedule keyed to the dates on which advances
were drawn down on the facility, and depending on how long each advance is outstanding. Vesting of these warrants
commenced on May 23, 2001, being the third monthly anniversary of the first advance being drawn. All 26,775,000
warrants will have vested in RCF II by July 26, 2002, being the thirteenth monthly anniversary of the date the final
advance was drawn under the facility, assuming that all advances remain outstanding on that date. If an advance is
repaid prior to the thirteenth monthly anniversary of its being drawn(except from the proceeds of the exercise of
warrants), all warrants issued in connection with that advance that have not vested as at the repayment date will be
cancelled. At December 31, 2001, a total of 6,659,565 of the warrants issued under the RCF 1I Bridge Facility had
vested in RCF IL

On August 1, 2001, the RCF II Bridge Facility was amended to increase the principal amount of the loan to $6,650,000.
As consideration for the amendment, the Company agreed to issue 9,000,000 warrants to RCF II to purchase 9,000,000
common shares of the Company exercisable at Cdn. $0.15 per share. These warrants had not been issued as at
December 31, 2001, but were assigned a fair value of $126,894 (note 7 (b)).

The following table summarizes activity involving warrants during 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Number of exercise

warrants price WAarTants price

Cdn. $ Cdn. $

Balance - Beginning of the year 61,646,667 0.123 68,916,667 0.120
Granted to RCF 11 28,775,000 0.200 1,925,000 0.200
Exercised - - (9,195,000) 0.120
Expired - - - -
Issuable to RCF II 9,000,000 0.150 - -
Balance - End of year 99,421,667 0.148 61,646,667 0.123

red
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At December 31, 2001, the following warrants are outstanding:

Warrants Exercise
Holder outstanding price
Cdn. $
St. Mary 17,500,000 0.120
RCF I 40,805,000 0.120
Third parties 1,416,667 0.130
Subtotal 59,721,667
RCF1I
Granted December 22, 2000 1,925,000 0.200
Granted March 6, 2001:
Vested March 6, 2001 . 2,000,000 0.200
Vested Quarter II, 2001 221,739 0.200
Vested Quarter 111, 2001 1,892,174 0.200
Vested Quarter IV, 2001 4,545,652 0.200
Not vested at Dec. 31, 2001 20,115,435 0.200
Subtotal ' 28,775,000
Issuable August 1, 2001 9,000,000 0.150

99,421,667

12 Income Taxes

Expiry
date

June 25, 2004
June 25, 2004
June 25, 2004

Jan. 8, 2003

March 6, 2004
June 30, 2004
Sept. 30, 2004
Dec. 31, 2004

Dec. 31, 2005

Reconciliation of income taxes calculated at the statutory rates to the actual tax provision:

Income tax recovery computed using the effective tax rate
Foreign losses subject to different tax rates
Non-deductible items

Benefit of non-capital losses not recognized

Income tax provision

2001
$

(1,678,145)

170,039
40,507

1,467,599

Assigned
fair value

8

239,483
684,236

923,719

11,271

1,263
34,485
81,394

438,749
567,162
126,894

1,617,775

2000
$

(1,014,476)
214,989
6,062
793,425
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to potential future tax assets are as follows:

2001 2000
$ $
Potential future income tax asset:
Write-down of investment 272,000 217,600
Capital assets and mineral properties 194,907 181,698
US non-capital loss carryforwards 3,894,894 1,671,177
Canadian non-capital loss carryforwards 765,746 702,913
5,127,647 2,773,388
Less: Valuation allowance (5,127,5647) (2,773,388)

Recognized future income tax asset - -

The Company has certain income tax losses available for deduction against future income as follows:

Canada United States

$ $

2002 \ 44,341 -
2003 255,910 -
2004 300,432 -
2005 197,746 -
2006 189,682 -
2007 177,924 -
2008 766,692 18,909
2009 ~ 2021 - 11,436,663
1,932,727 11,455,572

13 Commitments and contingencies
The Company has entered into employment agreements with two of its officers that provide for such individuals to
receive an amount equal to one year’s annual compensation or salary if the officer is terminated without cause or in
certain situations following a change in control. The potential commitment resulting from these agreements totalled
$305,000 at December 31, 2001.

14 Supplemental cash flow information

Interest and bank charges for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 are made up as follows:

2001 2000

$ $
Interest paid/(received), net (10,624) (37,094)
Interest settled through the issuance of shares 626,342 467,083
Amortization of deferred financing costs 309,507 206,964
924,225 636,953

v v‘ -
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During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company met certain financing costs with non-cash consideration, and
conducted non-cash investing activities as follows:

2001 2000
$ $
Non-cash financing activities
Shares issuable for notes payable to related parties 3,770 -
Warrants issued for notes payable to related parties 694,056 -
Non-cash investing activities
Interest on loans to Matrix 67,476 -

15 Fair value of financial instruments

At December 31, 2001, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and prepaid expenses,
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short period to
maturity of these instruments.

The Company has determined that it is not practicable to determine the fair value of the Company’s investment in
Matrix and the fair value of the amounts due St. Mary, RCF I and RCF II. Information regarding these balances is
disclosed in notes 6(b) and 7.

16 Segmented reporting
The Company has one operating segment, namely the exploration and development of copper mineral properties

within Australia, Mexico and the United States. Geographic segmentation of property, plant and equipment, and
mineral property costs, is as follows:

2001 2000

Property, Mineral Property, Mineral

plant and property plant and property

equipment costs equipment costs

$ $ $ $

Mexico ' - 1,256,892 - 599,383
United States 3,431,483 9,420,832 3,475,899 9,092,822
3,431,483 10,677,724 3,475,899 9,692,205

The Company’s interests in Australia are through the investment described in note 6(b).
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17 Employee retirement plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan (“Plan”) available to all U.S. resident employees who have completed six months of
service. Under the Plan, when an employee meets certain eligibility requirements, the Company makes “safe harbour”
non-elective contributions in an amount equal to 3% of such employee’s eligible compensation. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, the Company contributed $16,601 to the Plan (2000 - $17,485).

18 Subseguent events
a) Matrix Metals Limited

On January 9, 2002, the Company purchased 100,000 shares of Matrix in an open market transaction at Aus. $0.074
per share.

On January 21, 2002, the Company received 14,285,715 Matrix shares at Aus. $0.07 per share for the shares
subscribed for in the second tranche of the Matrix private placement, which shares were issued to the Company
in satisfaction of the Aus. $1,000,000 advanced to Matrix by the Company in late 2001 (ncte 6(b)).

On January 22, 2002, the Company received 1,982,450 Matrix shares in partial satisfaction (being $22,861) of the
interest due the Company in settlement of the interest due on November 20, 2001 in respect of the Company’s Aus.
$3,250,000 loan to Matrix. The balance of the interest due on November 20, 2001, being $4,598, was paid tc the
Company in cash.

As a result of the foregoing transactions, as at January 22, 2002, the Company owned 41,985,715 shares of Matrix,
representing a 45.8% ownership interest.

b) Amendment to RCF II Working Capital Loan Facility

Pursuant to a letter agreement dated January 3, 2002, RCF II agreed to provide the Company with an additional
convertible working capital loan facility in the amount of $500,000, bringing the total facility to $1,100,000. The
terms and conditions attached to this facility are substantially identical to those applicable to the $600,000
Working Capital Loan Facility (note 7(c)). The Company has agreed to issue 250,000 common shares to RCF II as
additional consideration for RCF II providing this facility.

¢) Terrazas Pre-feasibility Study

On February 22, 2002, the Company received a pre-feasibility study on the Terrazas copper-zinc oxide project from
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.

d) Capital Reorganization

The Cormpany’s major shareholders, RCF I, RCF Il and St. Mary, have agreed to convert their warrants as part of a
complete reorganization of the Company’s capital structure. The purpose of this reorganization is to place the
Company in a better position to continue to develop its current portfolio of copper projects in Australia, Mexico
and the United States.

The general sequence in which the principal components of the capital recrganization would be implemented is
described below:

(i) Repricing and Exercise of Outstanding Warrants

RCF I and RCF II hold an aggregate of 80,505,000 warrants with exercise prices ranging from Cdn. $0.12 to
Cdn. $0.20 per share. St. Mary holds 17,600,000 warrants which have an exercise price of Cdn. $0.12 per
share. The initial step would be to reduce the exercise price of the warrants held by St. Mary from Cdn. $0.12
per share to Cdn. $0.10 per share. In the second step, St. Mary and RCF would exercise all of their respective
warrants, thereby resulting in the issue of a total of 98,005,000 of.the Company’s shares.

4.2
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(ii) Application of Warrant Proceeds to Repayment of Outstanding Debt

The proceeds from the exercise of these warrants would be applied to pay down $8,952,315 of the total
$12,050,000 of the Company’s outstanding debt to St Mary and RCF. After conversion of the warrants and
application of the proceeds to repayment of outstanding debt, the Company would have a total of $3,097,685
in remaining outstanding debt to St. Mary and RCF.

(iil) Settlement of Remaining Debt

The Company would then settle the $3,097,685 in remaining debt by converting such debt into equity at a
conversion price of Cdn. $0.0525 per share in the case of St. Mary and Cdn. $0.07 per share in the case of
RCF, resulting in the issuance of an additional 72,073,357 shares. Concurrently, RCF II would convert its
outstanding $1,100,000 convertible note into equity at a conversion price of Cdn. $0.055 per share, resulting in
the issuance of a total of 31,682,000 shares of the Company.

The Company would have no residual debt upon conversion of this remaining indebtedness into shares.

(iv) Proposed Rights Offering

)

Upon completion of the transactions described above, the Company would have a total of 285,138,960
common shares issued and outstanding. Immediately thereafter, the Company intends to proceed with a
rights offering to existing shareholders to raise a total of approximately Cdn. $5,700,000.

1t is anticipated that up to approximately 71 million additional shares would be issued under the rights
offering, based on an estimated exercise price of Cdn. $0.08 per share. The ultimate price of the rights
offering would be determined at the time of the offering, based upon market conditions. RCF has agreed to
provide a standby commitment for the entire proposed rights offering, and has further agreed to advance
funds to meet the Company’s working capital requirements prior to the closing of the rights offering.
Advances would bear interest at the 30-day LIBOR rate, and would be repayable from the proceeds of the
rights offering. Following such repayment, the Company anticipates that it would have approximately
$3,250,000 in cash resources available.

Share Consolidation, Name Change and Continuation

Subject to shareholder approval, which would be requested at the Company’s annual meeting, to be held in
the latter half of June, 2002, the Company would then undertake a share consolidation, on a 10 old for 1 new
basis, a change of name and a continuation from British Columbia to the Federal jurisdiction of Canada.
These final steps of the Plan would place the Company in a better position to access the capital markets to
finance the continuing development of its projects when investor interest returns to the junior resource
sector.

(vi) Outstanding Share Capital Upon Completion of Plan

Following the proposed rights offering and the share consolidation, the Company would have approximately
35,640,000 common shares issued and outstanding, together with 5,150,000 options and 1,416,667 warrants.
Following the share consolidation, the options (which are described in note 10), would be exercisable into
515,000 common shares at a weighted average exercise price of Cdn. $1.80 per share. Likewise, the warrants,
(which are described in note 11), would be exercisable into 141,667 common shares, at an exercise price of
Cdn. $1.30 per share.
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' MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consclidated financial state-
ments included in this report. All monetary figures discussed are in United States dollars, unless ctherwise
stated.

Overview

Summo Minerals Corporation (“Summo”, or the “Company”) incurred a loss of $3,760,970 in 2001 (2000 -
$2,309,222). On a per share basis, the loss was $0.07 for the year (2000 - $0.06 per share). Approximately
one-third of the loss for the period is attributable to the Company’s share of the loss incurred by Matrix
Metals Limited (“Matrix™). The Matrix loss arcse in large measure from a decision by Matrix to write-down
the carrying value of copper contained in leach pad inventory at its Mt Cuthbert Operation in northwest
Queensland, Australia. Summeo accounts for its investment in Matrix on an equity basis.

Summo entered into twoe agreements on January 24, 2001 involving Matrix, a junior copper producer whose
shares trade on the Australian Stock Exchange. The first of these agreements dealt with the purchase of
Matrix shares from two shareholders, Murchison United NL (“Murchison”) and Majestic Resources NL
(“Majestic”). This transaction closed on June 1, 2001. The second agreement was between the Company
and Matrix in respect of the provision of a loan to Matrix. From a financial perspective, these two agree-
ments were central tc most of the Company's activities during the year.

The Company’s socurce of funds during the year were advances from Resource Capital Fund II, L.P (“RCF
IT"), which provided funding through three credit facilities. The funds advanced by RCF II allowed Summo
to:

# purchase a 48% equity interest in Matrix for $2,981,520 (Aus. $5,904,000);
make loans and advances to Matrix totaling $2,198,550 (Aus. $4,250,000);

B continue evaluation and development activities at Summo’s Terrazas copper-zinc oxide project
in Chihuahua, Mexico and Lisbon Valley copper oxide project in Utah, USA, and

=)

® cover the Company’s general and administrative expenses.

The funding provided by RCF II included $5,750,000 under the terms of a Bridge Facility entered into on
March 6, 2001. This facility was amended on August 1, 2001 to increase the principal amount by $900,000.
By a letter agreement dated November 15, 2001, RCF II agreed to advance a further $600,000 by way of a
note convertible into Summo shares.

Operations
a) Matrix Metals Limited, Queensland, Australia

Matrix produces cathode copper at its Mt Cuthbert Operation, a small copper oxide mining and heap
leaching operation located approximately 100 kilometers northeast of Mt Isa in northwest Queensland.
Because of its small size, unit operating costs at the Mt Cuthbert Operation are high, and the operation’s
cash flow at current copper prices is insufficient to cover the corporate overhead and financing costs
being incurred by Matrix.

Tl
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Several inter-dependent conditions must change if the Mt Cuthbert Operation is to become a viable
operation: (i) the processing plant must be expanded, to reduce unit operating costs; (ii) mining activi-
ties must be coordinated such that sufficient ore is delivered to the processing plant to enable it to oper-
ate at full capacity throughout the year, and (iii) the reserve/resource base must be increased to justify
the capital expenditure needed to expand the SX/EW plant. The prospects for addressing the last of
these conditions appear promising. If present expectations are met, the enlarged reserve/resource base
will support the capital investment needed to remedy the first two conditions.

Matrix holds mineral rights covering two parcels of land. The largest parcel, centered on the Mt
Cuthbert Operation, covers approximately 1,100 sg. kilometers. The other parcel, covering approxi-
mately 200 sq. kilometers, is referred to as the White Range area. As the deposits at White Range are
over 125 kilometers from the Mt Cuthbert Operation, they will require their own centrally-located pro-
cessing facility, as it is too far for the ore to be economically transported to Mt Cuthbert for processing.

The previous owners of the Mt Cuthbert and White Range mineral rights had identified mineral deposits
and delineated resources in both areas by the time those rights were acquired by Matrix in July 2000. In
October 2000, Matrix acquired additional mineral rights, by purchasing the Mt Watson property, approx-
imately 28 kilometers from the Mt Cuthbert processing plant. Matrix completed an initial shallow
drilling program at Mt Watson in June 2001, with encouraging results. Zones of copper oxide mineral-
ization to a depth of 20 to 25 meters were identified over a strike length in excess of 2.5 kilometers,
including an inferred resource of 837,000 tonnes grading 1.3% copper.

At 31 December 2001, the Mt Cuthbert and White Range resource bases were as follows:
Measured and Indicated Resources:

Mt Cuthbert 1,965,000 tonnes averaging 1.10% copper, in seven deposits
White Range 12,061,000 tonnes averaging 1.20% copper, in five deposits

Inferred Resources:

Mt Cuthbert * 2,098,000 tonnes averaging 1.25% copper
White Range 571,000 tonnes averaging 1.10% copper

* includes the June 2001 Mt Watson inferred resource

During the Fourth Quarter, Summo advanced $524,650 (Aus. $1,000,000) to Matrix to fund a second
phase of shallow drilling at Mt Watson. This drilling program was completed in January 2002, resulting
in the upgrading of the June 2001 Mt Watson inferred resource to the indicated category, and delineated
additional inferred resources at Mt Watson, as shown in the following table:

Resource Ore % ,
Category Tonnes Copper
Indicated 878,000 1.3
Inferred 416,000 1.2

In late November, investor sentiment in Australia became much more positive in respect of junior
resource companies, so much so that in early December, Matrix was able to announce a financing to
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b)

raise approximately Aus. $2,600,000. Summoc agreed to convert its Fourth Quarter advances into
14,285,715 shares as part of the financing, which closed in mid-January 2002.

During 2002, Matrix will need te raise additional capital to fund further drilling, metallurgical testwork
and feasibility studies in connection with an expansion of the Mt Cuthbert Operation and development
of the deposits at White Range. Summg intends to maintain its equity interest in Matrix, and has bud-
geted $1,575,000 for this purpose during 2002.

Terrazas Project, Chihuahua, Mexico

The Company’s program to evaluate the Terrazas copper-zinc oxide deposit in Chihuahua, Mexico con-
tinued to yield encouraging results in 2001. A total of $657,509 was expended on this project during
the year on drilling, metallurgical testwork and advancement of a pre-feasibility study (2000 -
$584,5642).

Summo is actively soliciting expressions of interest from third parties to form a joint venture to advance
the Terrazas Project. The next phase of work will be to commission a bankable feasibility study, based
upon the findings of the recently completed pre-feasibility study, and to complete additional in-fill
drilling and metallurgical testing.

The Company has budgeted $257,000 for expenditures on the Terrazas project in 2002, on the assump-
tion that no further field work or studies will be conducted until a joint venture is formed.

Lisbon Valley Project, Utah, USA

Early in 2001, Summeo entered into an agreement with two industrial companies tc commission a feasi-
bility study to evaluate the econcmic viability of using one of those company’s proprietary technology
to produce high purity copper powders from the Lisbon Valley copper-rich solutions. The parties ter-
minated the feasibility study in June, when it became apparent that revenues from the sale of the vari-
cus types of copper powders would fall short of earlier projections. The Company’s one-third share of
the feasibility study cost, being $66,695, was expensed during the year.

As discussed in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis included with last year's annual report, a
number of factors have contributed to the Company’s inability tc place the Lisbon Valley Project intc
production. Currently, the main impediment to a positive production decision is low copper prices.
While copper prices have climbed almost 256% from the lows of November 2001, the project as presently
configured needs copper prices in excess of 85 cents per pound to justify the investment. The Company
continues to evaluate various scenarios that could allow development of the Lisbon Valley Project at
copper prices lower than 85 cents per pound.

A total of $218,000 has been budgeted for 2002 to cover property payments and “care and maintenance”
costs for the Lisbon Valley Project, while the Company awaits an improvement in copper prices and
seeks to arrange financing for construction of the project.
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Resuits of Operations
The Company reported a net loss of $3,760,970 in 2001 as compared to a net loss of $2,309,222 in 2000.

The largest single component in the increased loss was the equity in the loss incurred by Matrix (2001 -
$1,326,817, 2000 - $nil). Inlarge measure, the loss incurred by Matrix arose from a decision taken in August
2001 to write-down the carrying value of the recoverable copper inventory on the leach pads at the Mt
Cuthbert Operation. The write-down was taken in connection with the completion of the annual accounts
of Matrix, whose financial year-end is June 30th, It was prompted by the sharp drop in copper prices that
occurred over the June — August period in 2001. The Company’s share of the inventory write-down was
$1,349,276.

The next largest component in the increased loss was higher interest expense and bank charges (2001 -
$924,225, 2000 - $636,953). The increase is attributable to higher loan balances during the year, and because
the amortization of deferred financing costs (being $309,507 in 2001, $206,964 in 2000) is also allocated to
this category of expense. Interest expense for the year was less than it otherwise would have been, as the
interest rates on all of the Company’s debts are based on floating rates. In that connection, the 30-day
London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”), which was 6.6% at the beginning of the year, decreased steadily
throughout the year, and ended the year at approximately 1.9%.

Other factors contributing to the Company’s net loss in 2001 included higher salary expense (2001 - $824,236,
2000 - $394,872), which was the result of higher payroll expense during 2001, and accruals for severance obli-
gations for employees terminated at the end of 2001; higher exploration expenses (2001 - $84,906, 2000 - $nil)
three-quarters of which was the Company’s share of costs incurred during the Second Quarter of 2001 to
evaluate the feasibility of producing copper powders at Lisbon Valley.

Costs incurred in 2001 that were lower than in 2000 included: consulting services (2001 - $88,331, 2000 -
$159,627), as such costs in 2000 included the expenses (being $85,470) incurred for due diligence inves-
tigations prior to making the Matrix investment; lower write-downs of investments (2001 - $160,000, 2000
- $640,000); and no write-down of the carrying value of mineral properties in 2001, versus $104,477 in
2000.

Financial Position

At December 31, 2001, the Company held cash and cash equivalents of $80,657, considerably less than the
$617,920 held at December 31, 2000. At year-end, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $371,674,
but discussions with RCF II were well advanced in respect of the provision of an additional $500,000 under
the terms of a convertible note in early January. The advance was received on January 3, 2002.

Summo and Matrix entered into a letter agreement on January 24, 2001, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to loan Matrix $1,673,900 (Aus. $3,250,000). During the year, Summoc earned $67,476 of interest on its advances
to Matrix. At December 31, 2001, the principal and accrued interest (being $37,254) totaled $1,711,154.

The Company made an equity investment in Matrix during the year of $3,995,437 (2000 - $nil). The invest-
ment consisted of the following items: (i) an initial investment of $2,981,520 to purchase 24,600,000 shares
of Matrix from Murchison and Majestic; (ii) the $524,650 advanced to Matrix in the Fourth Quarter of 2001,
subsequently converted into 14,285,715 shares of Matrix in January 2002; (iii) $19,295 to purchase 500,000
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shares of Matrix in the market in December 2001, and (iv) $30,222 of interest on the loan to Matrix, which
Matrix settled by issuing 517,550 shares. In additicn, the Company capitalized as part of its equity invest-
ment in Matrix an aggregate of $439,750 of expenses for financial advisory fees, accounting, legal and con-
sulting expenses, and premiums paid to purchase call options to hedge the Company’s exposure to com-
mitments expressed in Australian dollars.

At June 1, 2001, the date of the purchase of the interest in Matrix, the cost of the investment exceeded the
underlying net book value of the assets purchased by $768,139.

The Company invested a total of $985,519 in 2001 (2000 - $1,530,111) in the acquisition, exploration and
development of its other mineral property interests. Expenditures on the Terrazas Project were slightly
higher in 2001 than in the prior year (2001 - $657,509, 2000 - $584,542). Expenditures on the Lisbon Valley
Project were considerably lower in 2001 than in the prior year (2001 - $328,010, 2000 - $875,440), as a result
of the project being placed in a “care and maintenance” mode during much of 2001. During 2000, the
Company recovered $340,934 for deposits made in prior years for equipment and services ordered in antic-
ipation of a favourable production decision with respect to the Lisbon Valley Project. There was a further
recovery of $35,000 during 2001.

Cash provided by financing activities totaled $7,193,972 in 2001 (2000 - $1,881,899). In March 2001, the
Company and RCF II entered into a credit agreement pursuant to which RCF II advanced $5,750,000 to the
Company. At the beginning of August, the agreement was amended and RCF II loaned the Company an addi-
tional $900,000. In November, RCF II provided another $600,000 by way of a Convertible Note. Cash costs
of $56,028 incurred for legal services in connection with the RCF Il credit facilities were netted against the
aggregate amounts advanced by RCF IL

The March loan and the August amendment included the issuance of an aggregate of 37,775,000 warrants to
RCF 1II to acquire shares of the Company at Cdn. $0.20 per share on 28,775,000 warrants, and at Cdn $0.15
per share on 9,000,000 warrants. As these warrants were issued in connection with debt financings, the
Company was required to assign a fair value to such warrants. The fair value was determined using a Black-
Scholes model, from the date the warrants were issued or become issuable. The fair value assigned to the
warrants was $694,056. This amount has been included in the equity component of unexercised warrants,
and also included in deferred financing costs. The deferred costs are being amortized over the life of the
financing with which the warrants are associated.

In 2000, $750,000 was received from the exercise of warrants held by Resource Capital Fund (“RCF I"),
$631,899 was received as a resuit of an increase in the amount owed under a June 1999 Note payable tc RCF
I, and $500,000 was received from the issuance of share units to RCF II in December 2000.

Outiook

While traditional “leading indicators” suggest that the US economy is growing again, copper inventories in
London Metal Exchange and COMEX warehouses remain at historic highs, and anecdotal evidence suggests
that copper fabricators have not seen sufficient orders to stimulate restocking of their own plant invento-
ries. Hedge fund activities are thought to be the primary reason why copper prices have risen in the face of
large exchange inventories. There is some concern that if the funds begin to “book” some of their paper
profits, copper prices could reverse course and begin to weaken again. On the other hand, the leading
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indicators developed by the United States Geologic Survey for predicting copper price movements are sug-
gesting that copper prices could move sharply higher in the coming months.

The Company requires additional funds tc continue operations and complete the evaluation and develop-
ment of its mineral properties and to meet its obligations. However, the Company’s existing capital struc-
ture (at December 31, 2001, there were 56,777,174 shares and 99,421,667 warrants outstanding) makes it dif-
ficult to obtain financing from public markets. On April 2, 2002, the Company announced that its three major
shareholders, RCF I, RCF II and St. Mary Minerals Inc. (“St. Mary”) had agreed to convert their warrants as
part of a complete reorganization of the Company’s capital structure. It is expected that this reorganization
will place the Company in a better position to fund its ongoing programs to develop its current portfolioc of
copper projects in Australia, Mexico and the United States.

The components of the proposed capital reorganization are described in Note 18(d) to the consolidated
financial statements forming a part of this Annual Report. Upon completion of the reorganization, it is antic-
ipated that the Company will have a cash balance of approximately $3,250,000, no debt, and approximately
35,640,000 common shares issued and outstanding, together with 5,150,000 options and 1,416,667 warrants.
Following the share consolidation, the options would be exercisable into 515,000 common shares at a
weighted average price of Cdn. $1.80 per share. Likewise, the warrants, which will expire on 25 June 2004,
will be exercisable into 141,667 common shares, at an exercise price of Cdn. $1.30 per share.

Risk Factors

Potential risk factors that could affect the Company are discussed below:
a) Copper prices

Copper is the principal metal of economic interest at the Company’s current projects. Thus the Company’s
ability to obtain financing for development of its projects, and their profitability, will be largely determined
by copper prices, which are determined in world markets and subject to wide fluctuations. The Company
has no control or influence over copper prices. While the Company intends to employ a copper price
hedging strategy at such time as it begins production at its projects, in the event of a severe and prolonged
decrease in copper prices, the ability of the Company to raise capital and to operate profitably could be
impaired and development and production activities may have to cease from time to time.

b) Regulatory and environmental matters

The following discussion is necessarily brief and must not be taken to constitute a complete discussion
of the various statutes, rules and governmental orders to which the Company’s operations may be sub-
ject. The Company’s existing properties are located in Australia, Mexico and the United States, and are
subject to extensive federal, state and local governmental regulations in these countries. These regula-
tions may be revised or expanded at any time. A broad number of matters are subject to regulation.
Generally, compliance with these regulaticns requires the Company to obtain permits issued by federal,
state and local regulatory agencies. Certain permits require periodic renewal or review of their condi-
tions. Itis impossible to predict whether it will be possible to cbtain or renew such permits or whether
material changes in permit conditions will be impcsed. The inability to obtain or renew permits or the
imposition of additional conditions could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to
develop and operate its properties.
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<)

d)

The Company’s mineral property interests in the United States are subject to the provisions of the
General Mining Law of 1872 (the “General Mining Law™). From time to time, Congress has considered a
number of amendments to the General Mining Law. Although amending legislation has not been
enacted, attempts to modify the General Mining Law can be expected to continue. The potential impact
on the Company as a result of congressional action is difficult to predict, but would, in the case of
imposed royalties, generally reduce the Company’s profitability.

Environmental laws and regulations to which the Company is subject as it progresses from the devel-
opment stage to the production stage give rise to additional concerns and requirements. Failure to com-
ply with applicable laws, regulations and permits can result in injunctive actions, suits for damages, and
civil and criminal penalties. The laws and regulations applicable to the Company’s activities change fre-
quently and it is not possible to predict the potential impact on the Company from any such future
changes.

The Company's proposed Lisbon Vailey Project will be subject to air emission limitations imposed by
the Clean Air Act and state implementing programs, or similar provisions of Australian and/or Mexican
legislation. Under the Clean Water Act, the Lisbon Valley Project will be required to obtain permits
under the Environmental Protection Agency’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System for dis-
charges of certain pollutants intc navigable waters of the United States.

Operations at the Company’s proposed Lisbon Valley operation will be subject to the regulatory juris-
diction of the Mine Safety and Health Administration, an agency of the United States Department of
Labor. Because the Company is currently in the development stage, it is not possible to predict the
impact of these regulations on its proposed operations.

Weather

The Mt Cuthbert Operation is affected seascnally by the wet season, or as it is commonly called, the
“Wet”. During the Australian summer cyclones crossing northern Australia result in prolonged periods
of heavy rains and extensive flooding of low-lying areas. In light of difficult conditions during the Wet,
it has been the practice to suspend mining activities at the Mt Cuthbert Operation for the duration of
the Wet, but to continue with heap leaching and the production of cathode copper.

In December 2000, abnoermally heavy rains in the Mt Isa area resulted in severe flocding, which halted
the delivery of sulphuric acid, diesel fuel and other supplies essential tc operating the heap leach and
production of copper cathodes at Mt Cuthbert. The effects of the flooding continued to adversely affect
production through April 2001. As flooding is a common occurrence during the Wet, Matrix will have
to develop measures to deal with disruptions to transportation links. The measures to be implemented
would include building up inventories at the processing site, including ore, fuel, sulphuric acid and other
supplies, prior to the onset of the Wet. In the event of transportation difficulties, adequate inventories
would allow operations to continue more or less unencumbered.

Native Title Issues
There is significant uncertainty associated with native (i.e. aboriginal) title in Australia, and this may

impact on the operations and future development of the mineral rights held by Matrix. A 1992 decision
of the High Court of Australia recognizes that native title rights and interests may extend to lands and
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waters. Thus, if there is a possibility that native title may exist in an area, there are processes that must
be undergone, as required by the Native Title Act 1993 (Commonwealth of Australia) (the “NTA”),
before the Queensland government may validly grant a mining tenure for that area. The processes are
principally the “right to negotiate” procedures under the NTA.

Most, but not all, of the mineral rights held by Matrix in the Mt Cuthbert and White Range areas are sub-
ject to a native title claim by the Kalkadoon People. Matrix has conducted a lengthy negotiation with
the Kalkadoon People in respect of an Indigenous Land Use Agreement (“ILUA”) covering the Mt
Cuthbert and White Range areas. Matrix management have estimated that implementation of the meas-
ures specified in this ILUA will result in additional costs to Matrix of less than Aus. $100,000 per annum.

The ILUA is currently undergoing the certification process stipulated in the NTA, following which, it will
be registered with the National Native Title Tribunal. While the timing of the certification and registra-
tion process is outside the control of Matrix, indications are that it should be completed some time dur-
ing the Third Quarter. Although there is no guarantee that the ILUA will be registered, given the broad
support within the Kalkadoon community for this ILUA to be implemented, the possibility that regis-
tration would not occur is considered tc be unlikely.

Certain lands within the Mt Cuthbert and White Range areas are exempt from the provisions of the NTA,
because the mining leases were granted prior to the enactment of the NTA on 1 January 1994. However,
development of some of the larger and more promising mineral deposits, including Mt Watson, cannot
proceed until the Queensland government can legally grant Matrix a mining lease. Registration of the
ILUA will enable the government to grant the mining lease.

Currency Risk

The United States dollar is the Company’s functional currency, but a growing portion of its assets are
located outside the United States. Thus future profitability of the Company’s investments could be
impacted by unfavourable changes in the exchange rates of the Australian dollar and the Mexican peso
against the US dellar. This is particularly true at the present time. International currency traders view
countries like Canada and Australia as commodity-based. When the economies of the large industrial
nations such as the Germany, Japan and the United States are growing rapidly, thereby increasing the
demand for commodities, commodity-based currencies tend to strengthen. The converse also holds
true. Over the last two to three years, the Australian dollar has traded at a greater discount to the US
dollar than had previously prevailed, and to the degree the Australian dollar begins to strengthen over
the next several months, that would have adverse financial consequences for Matrix, and by extension,
for Summo.

Throughout the world, cathode copper is priced in US dollar terms. Thus, if the Australian dollar begins
to strengthen against the US dollar, Matrix’ sales receipts measured in Australian dollar terms will drop,
while most of its costs will not be affected, as they are incurred in Australia dollars. Such a develop-
ment would adversely affect Matrix’ profitability and cash flows.

ESP Supply

The Mt Cuthbert Operation processes copper-containing residues produced during the smelting of cop-
per concentrates. The residues are recovered in electrostatic precipitators (hence, “ESP dust”) during




the smelting process. Matrix purchases the ESP dust at favourable terms under short-term contractual
arrangements. The ESP dust is added to the Mt Cuthbert ores during the crushing and agglomeration step,
prior to the ores being placed on the heaps for leaching. As the copper contained in the ESP dust leaches
readily, treating these dusts at the Mt Cuthbert Operation adds substantially to operating income.

Matrix is not currently able to purchase the ESP dust under long-term arrangements. Should it not be
possible to purchase this material in the future, it could adversely affect the profitability of the Mt Cuthbert
operation.
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NOTES:

1. A proxy, to be valid, must be dated and signed by the member or by his attorney authorized in writing or, where the member is a corporation, by a duly authorized and
appointed officer, attorney or representative of the corporation. If the proxy is executed by an attorney for an individual member or by an officer, attorney or
representative of a corporate member, the instrument so empowering the officer, attorney or representative, as the case may be, or a notarial copy thereof, or such other
documentation in support thereof as may be accepted by the Chairman of the Meeting, must accompany the proxy instrument. If the proxy form is not dated by the
member, it shall be deemed to be dated the date of receipt by the Company or Pacific Corporate Trust Company.

2. A proxy to be effective must be deposited at the office of Pacific Corporate Trust Company, Corporate Trust Department, 10th Floor, 625 Howe Street, Vancouver, B.C.,
V6C 3B8, not less than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time fixed for the Meeting. This can be done by mail, by fax ((604) 689-8144),
by telephone voting (1-888-Tel-Vote (1-888-835-8683)) or through the Internet (http://www.stocktronics.com/webvote).

3. If the member will not attend the Meeting but wishes to vote on the resolutions, the member may do either of the following:
(a) sign, date and return the proxy form. Where no choice is specified by a member on the proxy form, the Management Appointee will vote the securities as
if the member had specified an affirmative vote; or
(b) appoint a person (who need not be a member of the Company) other than the Management Appointees by crossing off the names of the Management

Appointees, inserting the appointed proxyholder’s name in the space provided, then signing, dating and returning the proxy form. Where no choice is specified
by 2 member on a proxy form, the proxy form confers discretionary authority upon the member’s appointed proxyholder.

4. If the member will attend the Meeting and wishes to vote on the resolutions in person, the member may do either of the following:
(a) if the member is registered on the register of Members, record his attendance with the Company’s scrutineers at the Meeting; or
(b) if the member’s securities are registered under the name of a financial institution, cross off the names of the Management Appointees, insert the member’s own

name in the space provided, indicate a voting choice or not, as desired, and then sign, date and return the proxy form to the financial institution or its agent.

5. This proxy confers discretionary authority with respect to amendments or variations of the matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters
which might properly come before the meeting.

VOTING INSTRUCTIONS:

1. The shares represented by this proxy may be voted “for” or “against” all resolutions, other than the election of directors and appointment of the auditor, above by marking "X" in the box
provided for that purpose.

2. By marking an "X" in the box in the left-hand column, 2 member can specify that the shares represented by this proxy are to be voted for the election of a nominee as a director and for
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor. By marking an "X" in the box on the right-hand column a member can specify that the shares represented by this proxy are not to be voted for that
nominee as a director or for the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor, as the case may be. Where, for any reason, the instructions of the undersigned are uncertain as
they relate to the election of directors, the shares represented by this proxy will not be voted for any director.
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Corporate Office:

900 Denver Center Building, 1776 Lincoln Street
Denver, CO 80203, USA

Tel: (303) 861-5400 Fax: (303) 863-1736

NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF
MEMBERS '

TO THE MEMBERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual and Extraordinary General Meeting of

Summo Minerals Corporation (the "Company") will be held at the Prince Edward Room, The
Fairmont Royal York Hotel, 100 Front Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5J 1E3 on Friday, June
21, 2002 at 10:0¢ a.m. (local time) to transact the usual business of an Annual General Meeting
and for the following purposes:

1.

2.

To receive the Report of the Directors to the Members.

To receive the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal
period ended December 31, 2001 and the report of the auditor thereon.

To consider, and if thought fit, to approve, with or without amendment, an ordinary
resolution, whereunder the Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan be amended such that
the maximum number of shares that may be the subject of options at any given time be
increased from 6,000,000 to 30,000,000 shares.

INSIDERS TO WHOM SHARES MAY BE ISSUED UNDER THE PLAN, AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE ASSOCIATES AND AFFILIATES, WILL ABSTAIN
FROM VOTING ON THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION. THE APPROVAL OF
A MAJORITY OF DISINTERESTED MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY IS
THEREFORE SOUGHT.

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve, with or without amendment, an ordinary
resolution whereunder the Company obtain advance member approval for the issuance of
a number of shares by private placement that exceeds 25% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding share capital, all as more fully set forth in the Information Circular attached
hereto and forming a part hereof.




10.

11

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve, with or without amendment, a special
resolution authorizing the continuance of the Company out of the Province of British
Columbia and into the federal jurisdiction of Canada under the Canada Business
Corporations Act, all as more fully set forth in the accompanying Information Circular.

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the provisions of Section 37(4) of the Company Act
(British Columbia) (the "Act"), you may until June 19, 2002 give the Company a Notice
of Dissent by registered mail addressed to the Company at the address set forth above
with respect to the special resolution to authorize the continuance of the Company under
the Canada Business Corporations Act. As a result of giving a Notice of Dissent you
may, on receiving a Notice of Intention to Act under Section 207 of the Act, require the
Company to purchase all your shares in respect of which the Notice of Dissent was given.

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve, with or without amendment, a special
resolution, amending the Company’s Articles of Continuance by consolidation of the
Company’s Common Share capital on the basis of one post-consolidation Common Share
for each 10 pre-consclidation Common Shares, all as more fully set forth in the
accompanying Information Circular.

To consider and, if thought fit, to approve, with or without amendment, a special
resolution, amending the Company’s Articles of Continuance by changing the name of
the Company from “Summo Minerals Corporation” to “Constellation Copper
Corporation” , all as more fully set forth in the accompanying Information Circular.

To elect directors to hold office until the close of the next Annual General Meeting.

To appoint an auditor for the Company to hold office until the close of the next Annual
General Meeting.

To authorize the directors to fix the remuneration to be paid to the auditor of the
Company.

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournment or adjournments thereof.

The accompanying Information Circular provides additional information relating to the

matters to be dealt with at the Meeting and is deemed to form part of this Notice. Copies of any
documents to be considered, approved, ratified and adopted or autherized at the Meeting will be
available for inspection at the registered and records office of the Company at 1040-999 West
Hastings Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2, during normal business hours up to Jume 21, 2062
being the date of the Meeting, and at the Meeting.




The directors of the Company fixed the close of business on May 13, 2002 as the record
date for determining holders of common shares who are entitled to vote at the Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote in his stead. If you are unable to attend the Meeting in person, please complete,
sign and date the enclosed Form of Proxy and return the same in the enclosed return envelope
provided for that purpose within the time and to the location in accordance with the instructions
set out in the Form of Proxy and Information Circular accompanying this Notice.

DATED at Denver, Colorado, this 16th day of May, 2002.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Summo Minerals Corporation

“Gregory A. Hahn”

Gregory A. Hahn, President
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MINERAL
CORPORATI

Corporate Office:

900 Denver Center Building

1776 Lincoln Street

Denver, CO 80203, USA

Tel: (303) 861-5400 Fax: (303) 863-1736

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR

As at May 7, 2002
unless otherwise noted

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies
by the management of SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION (the "Company"), at the
time and place and for the purpeses set forth in the Notice of Meeting.

Note: The term "member" as defined in the Company Act R.S.B.C. 1996, c.62 (the "Company
Act") means every person whose name is entered in the register of members of a British
Columbia company or any branch register thereof, and has that meaning wherever it
appears throughout this Information Circular or the accompanying Notice of Meeting.
The exercise by the holder of a share of a British Columbia company or rights granted
under or pursuant to the Company Act to a member of such company is contingent upon
the holder being registered as a member thereof.

It is expected that the solicitation will be primarily by mail. Proxies may also be solicited
personally or by telephone by directors, officers or employees of the Company at nominal cost.
The cost of this solicitation will be borne by the Company.

ADVANCE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

An advance notice of the Meeting invitihg nominations for election as directors of the
Company as required by Section 111 of the Company Act was delivered to the British Columbia




Securities Commission, the Ontaric Securities Commission and The Tcronto Stock Exchange
and was published in The Vancouver Province on April 26, 2002.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

The persons named in the accompanying Form of Proxy are nominees of the Company’s
management. A member desiring to appoin{ some other person (who meed mot be a
member) to represent him at the meeting may do so either by:

()  STRIKING OUT THE PRINTED NAMES AND INSERTING THE DESIRED
PERSON'S NAME IN THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED IN THE FORM OF
PROXY;OR

(v) BY COMPLETING ANOTHER PROPER FORM OF PROXY.

The completed proxy must be deposited at the office of Pacific Corporate Trust
Company, Corporate Trust Department, 10th Floor, 625 Howe Street, Vancouver, B.C., V6C 3BS,
not less than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time fixed for the
meeting.

A member who has given a proxy may revoke it by an instrument in writing delivered to
the office of Pacific Corporate Trust Company, Corporate Trust Department, or to the registered
office of the Company, 1040-999 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2, at any time
up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the meeting, or any adjournment
thereof, or to the Chairman of the meeting or any adjournment thereof, or in any other manner
provided by law.

VOTING OF PROXIES

If the instructions as to voting indicated in the proxy are certain, the shares represented by
the proxy will be voted on any poll and where a choice with respect to any matter to be acted
upon has been specified in the proxy, the shares will be voted on any poll in accordance with the
specifications so made. [F A CHOICE IS NOT SO SPECIFIED, IT IS INTENDED THAT THE
PERSON DESIGNATED BY MANAGEMENT IN THE ACCOMPANYING FORM OF
PROXY WILL VOTE THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY IN FAVOUR OF
EACH MATTER IDENTIFIED ON THE FORM OF PROXY AND FOR THE NOMINEES OF
MANAGEMENT FOR DIRECTCRS AND AUDITCR.

The form of proxy accompanying this Information Circular confers discreticnary
authority upon the named proxyholder with respect to amendments or variations to the matters
identified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and with respect to any cther matters which
may properly come before the meeting. As of the date of this Information Circular, the
management of the Company knows of no such amendment or variation or matters to come
before the meeting other than those referred to in the accompanying Notice of Meeting.




INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Other than as disclosed elsewhere herein, none of the following persons has any material
interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any
matter to be acted upon other than the election of directors or the appointment of management:

(a) any director or senior officer of the Company since the commencement of the Company's
last completed financial year;

(b) any proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company; and

(c) any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing persons.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREQF

The Company is authorized to issue 600,000,000 Shares divided into 500,000,000
common shares without par value (the "Common Shares") and 100,000,000 Preferred Shares
without par value (the "Preferred Shares"). As of May 7, 2002, 247,444,976 Common Shares
and no Preferred Shares are issued and outstanding.

Only the holders of Common Shares are entitled to vote at the Meeting and the said
holders of Common Shares are entitled to one vote for each Common Share heid. The directors
of the Company fixed May 13, 2002 as the record date for the determination of the members
entitled to vote at the Meeting.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company, the following are
the only persons beneficially owning, directly or indirectly, or exercising control or direction over
voting securities carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting
securities of the Company as of May 7, 2002:

No. of
Voting Percentage of
Type of Securities Issued Voting
Name Ownership Owned Securities
St. Mary Minerals Inc." Direct 37,207,651 15.04%
Resource Capital Fund L.P.® Direct 93,988,931 37.98%
Resource Capital Fund I L.P.?) Direct 100,371,031 40.56%

(1) St. Mary Minerals Inc. ("SMI") is a Colorado corporation with a head office at 1100-1776 Lincoln Street,
Denver, Colorado, 80203. SMI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of St. Mary Land & Exploration Co., a public
company whose shares are posted and listed for trading on NASDAQ.

(2) Resource Capital Fund L.P. (“RCF I”) and Resource Capital Fund I L.P. (“RCF II”) constitute a “control
person” of the Company. James T. McClements, a director of the Company, is also the Chief Executive
Officer of Resource Capital Associates L.L.C. and RCF II GP Limited, the General Partners of RCF I and
RCF 11, respectively.




INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS

(a) Summary of General Reguirements

At the Company's Annual General Meeting held on May 24, 1996, the members approved
an Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") whereunder up to a total of 2,000,000
Common Shares were allocated and reserved for option. At the Company’s Annual General
Meetings held in 1997, 1999 and 2000, respectively, the Plan was revised and the number of
shares that may be allocated and reserved for option was increased. The last increase, approved
by the shareholders in 2000, allocates and reserves up to 6,000,000 Common Shares under the
Plan.

The Plan complies with the rules set forth for such plans by The Toronto Stock Exchange
(the "TSE") and provides for the issuance of options to directors, officers and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries to purchase common shares of the Company. The stock options
are issued at the discretion of the Board of Directors and may be exercisable during a period not
exceeding ten years. At no time will more than 6,000,000 Common Shares be under option
pursuant to the Plan. The exercise price must not be lower than the "market price” of the
Common Shares on the TSE at the time of grant. In the context of the Plan, "market price”
means the closing price of the Company's Common Shares on the TSE at the close of trading
which immediately preceded the time that the option was granted. If the Common Shares of the
Company do not trade on such day, the "market price” shall be the average of the bid and the ask
prices on the previous trading day.

The objective of the Plan is to provide for and encourage ownership of common shares of
the Company by its directors, officers and key employees and those of any subsidiary companies
so that such persons may increase their stake in the Company and benefit from increases in the
value of the common shares. The Plan is designed to be competitive with the benefit programs
of other companies in the natural resource industry. It is the view of management that the Plan is
a significant incentive for the directors, officers and key employees to continue and to increase
their efforts in promoting the Company’s operations to the mutual benefit of both the Company
and such individuals.

(b) Amendment to Incentive Stock Option Plan

As of May 7, 2002, a total of 247,444,976 shares of the Company are issued and
outstanding. At the Meeting, the shareholders will be asked to consider, and the directors,
believing it to be in the best interests of the Company, recommend the shareholders approve, a
resolution whereunder the number of Common Shares of the Company that have been allocated
and reserved for issuance in the Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") be
increased from 6,000,000 Common Shares to 30,000,000 Common Shares.

INSIDERS TO WHOM SHARES MAY BE ISSUED UNDER THE PLAN, AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE ASSOCIATES AND AFFILIATES, WILL ABSTAIN FROM
YOTING ON THE FOREGOING TRANSACTION. THE APPROVAL QOF A




MAJORITY OF DISINTERESTED MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY IS THEREFORE
SOUGHT.

As a result, at the Meeting, the votes attaching to the 195,078,462 Common Shares held
by insiders and their associates will not be counted.

(c) Granting of Options

During the most recently completed financial year (January 1, 2001 to December 31,
2001) (the "Financial Period"), the Company granted the following incentive stock options to its
directors and other insiders:

Consideration Exercise
No. of received for | Price Per
Name of Optionee Date of Grant Shares! Options Share Expiry Date
Gregory A. Hahn Apr.18/2001 650,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
J. Christopher Mitchell Apr.18/2001 500,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
James D. Frank® Apr.18/2001 350,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
Robert A. Prescott® Apr.18/2001 350,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
Gordon J. Bogden Apr.18/2001 150,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
James T. McClements Apr.18/2001 150,000 Nominal 50.20 Apr.18/2006
Graham H. Scott Apr.18/2001 150,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
Frank D. Wheatley Apr.18/2001 150,000 Nominal $0.20 Apr.18/2006
Total: , 2,450,000

) Vesting as to 25% immediately, 50% in year one, 75% in year two and thereafier 100%.
) These persons are currently consultants to the Company.

Reference is made to the section captioned "Election of Directors" for further details with
respect to the present positions of certain of the aforesaid persons and number of shares held in
the Company.

(d) Exercise of Options

No options to purchase Common Shares were exercised by the directors and other
insiders of the Company during the Financial Period.

(e) Summary of Number of Securities under Option

In suminary:

1) no incentive stock options to purchase Common Shares were granted during the
Financial Period; and

(i)  as at the date hereof, incentive stock options to purchase up to a total of 5,150,000
Common Shares are outstanding, all of which options pertain to insiders.




ADVANCE MEMBER APPROVAL FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A NUMBER OF SHARES
BY PRIVATE PLACEMENT THAT EXCEEDS 25% OF THE COMPANY'S ISSUED
AND QUTSTANDING SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is presently considering the funding of the pre-production costs of the
Lisbon Valley Property, funding a full feasibility study of the Terrazas Property, Mexico, and is
reviewing certain acquisitions. The Company from time to time investigates opportunities to
raise financing on advantageous terms. It expects to undertake one or more financings over the
next year and expects some of them to be structured as private placements.

Under the rules of The Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSE™) the aggregate number of
shares of a listed company which are issued or made subject to issuance (i.e. issuable under a
share purchase warrant or option or other convertible security) by way of one or more private
placement transactions during any particular six-month period must not exceed 25% of the
number of shares outstanding (on a non-diluted basis) prior to giving effect to such transactions
(the "TSE 25% Rule"), unless there has been member approval of such transactions.

The application of the TSE 25% Rule may restrict the availability to the Company of
funds which it may wish to raise in the future by private placement of its securities.

In particular, management of the Company considers it to be in the best interests of the
Company to solicit private placement funds for working capital and its development and
production activities. The TSE has a working practice that it will accept advance approval by
members in anticipation of private placements that may otherwise exceed the TSE 25% Rule,
provided such private placements are completed within 12 months of the date such advance
member approval is given.

The Company's issued and outstanding share capital as at the date hereof is 247,444,976
Common Shares and the Company proposes that the number of shares which either would be
issued or made subject to issuance under one or more private placements in the 12-month period
commencing June 21, 2002 would not exceed 247,444,976 Common Shares, or 100% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding share capital as at May 7, 2002.

Any private placement proceeded with by the Company under the advance approval being
sought at the Meeting will be subject to the following additional restrictions:

(a) it must be substantially with parties at arm's length to the Company,

(b) it cannot materially affect control of the Company;

(c) it must be completed within a 12-month period following the date advance member
approval is given; and

(@ it must comply with the private placement pricing rules of the TSE which currently
require that the issue price per Common Share must not be lower than the closing market
price of the common shares cn the TSE on the trading day prior to the date notice of the
private placement is given tc the TSE (the "Market Price™), less the applicable discount as
follows:




Maximum Discount
Market Price Therefrom
$0.50 or less 25%
$0.51 to $2.00 20%
Above $2.00 15%

(For these purposes, a private placement of unlisted convertible securities is deemed to be a private
placement of the underlying listed securities at an issue price equal to the lowest possible price at
which the securities are convertible by the holders thereof.)

In any event, the TSE retains the discretion to decide whether or not a particular
placement is "substantially" at arm's length or will materially affect control in which case specific
member approval may be required.

In anticipation that the Company may wish to enter intc one or more private placements
in the next 12 months that will result in it issuing and/or making issuable such number of its
common shares, taking into account any shares that may be issued upon exercise of any wairants,
options or other rights granted in connection with the private placements, that will exceed the
TSE 25% Rule, the Company requests its members to pass an ordinary resclution on the
following terms:

"BE IT RESOLVED, with or without amendment, as an ordinary resolution, that the
issuance by the Company in one or more private placements during the 12-month period
commencing June 21, 2002 of such number of securities that would result in the
Company issuing or making issuable up to 247,444,976 common shares, or 100% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding share capital as of May 7, 2002, as more particularly
described in the Company's Information Circular, is hereby approved.”

The directors of the Company believe the passing of the ordinary resolution to be in the
best interests of the Company and recommend the members vote in favour of the resolution. In
the event the resolution is not passed, the TSE will not approve any private placements that result
in the issuance or possible issuance of a number of shares which exceeds the TSE 25% Rule,
without specific member approval. Such restriction could impede the Company's timely access
to required funds on favourable terms.

An ordinary resolution requires the approval of a simple majority of the votes cast by
those members of the Company who, being entitled to do so, vote in person at a general meeting
of the Company.




CONTINUANCE UNDER THE CANADA BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT
Intreduction

At the Meeting, the members will be asked to consider, and the directors recommend the
members approve, a special resoluticn authorizing the continuance (the “Continuance”™) of the
Company under the Canada Business Corporations Act (the "CBCA").

The Company is currently governed, as to matters of corporate law, by the Company Act
(British Columbia) (the “BCAA”). A company subject to the BCAA may, if authorized by
special resolution and the Registrar of Companies of British Columbia (the “Registrar’), apply to
the Director appointed under the CBCA (the “Director”) for a certificate of continuance under the
CBCA. Upon the issuance of a certificate of continuance in respect of the Company, the BCCA
will cease to apply to the Company and the CBCA will become applicable to the Company as if
the Company had been incorporated under the CBCA. As the Company intends to maintain its
registered and records office in British Columbia, the Company will be making application to
register as an extra-provincial company under the BCCA.

The Company will retain its listing on The Toronto Stock Exchange and will maintain a
branch register of transfers in the Province of British Columbia following the continuance of the
Company under the CBCA. '

Proceedings at the Meeting

If the motion proposing the Continuance is passed, the Meeting will be adjourned in order
for the Company to be continued under the CBCA by recording of the applicable documentation
with the Director appointed under the CBCA. Following such recording, the meeting will
reconvene, and the members will elect the board of directors and conduct the remaining business
on the agenda.

Reasons for the Proposed Continuance

Management of the Company believes that the Continuance will permit the Company to
take advantage of the more modem corporate law procedures provided by the CBCA, in light of
the amendments to the CBCA which became effective on November 24, 2001.

Of particular significance to the Company is the amendment which lowers from 50% to
25%, the percentage of the number of the members of the board of directors of the Company
which must be held by residents of Canada. The Company conducts operations in the United
States, Mexico and Australia. The Continuance will permit the Company to have a board which
better reflects the geographical distribution of the Company’s operations and its shareholders.




Differences between the BCCA and the CBCA

There are a number of differences between the BCCA and the CBCA that may materially
affect the rights of shareholders. The following chart provides a brief summary of some of the
changes that will occur as a result of the Continuance becoming effective. This summary is not
intended to be exhaustive and members should consult their legal advisors regarding all of the
implications of the continuance. Reference is made to the text below the chart for more detailed

information.
Right

Approval required for
fundamental changes such as
mergers, consolidations,
amalgamations, continuances
and arrangements

Approval required for other
extraordinary transactions
(including sales, leases or
exchanges of all or
substantially all of
corporation's assets,
liquidation or winding-up)

Offer by an issuer to

repurchase common shares of
that issuer

Dissenter's appraisal rights

BCCA

Three-quarters of all shares
voting on the matter (includes
in certain cases, non-voting
shares and shares entitled to
vote separately as a class or
series)

Three-quarters of ali shares
voting on the matter (includes
in certain cases, non-voting
shares and shares entitled to
vote separately as a class or
series)

Offers must generally be
made to all holders of
common shares; purchases
generally from individual
sharehciders are not

permitted; the take-over rules,

valuation and additional
disclosure requirements also

apply

Allowed in most

extraordinary transactions and

certain other fundamental
changes

CBCA

Not less than two-thirds of
the votes cast by shareholders
who voted in respect of that
resolution

Not less than two-thirds of
the votes cast by shareholders
who voted in respect of that
resolution

Offers need not be made to all
holders, but cannot be made if
the company would be
insolvent upon the

completion of the purchase

Allowed in a somewhat
smaller number of
transactions




Right

Shareholder proposals

Attendance at shareholder
meetings by telephone or
electronic means

Arrangements

Residency of directors

Removal of directors

Registered office

Location of general meetings

Statutory Amalgamation

Indemnification of director

10

BCCA

The company must include
shareholders’ nominee for
director in management's
information circular, if
supported by 10% of the
shares

Not permitted

A compromise or
arrangement must be between
the Company and its creditors
or shareholders

Majority must be ordinarily
resident in Canada; one must
be a resident of British
Columbia

Special resolution required

Must be situated in British
Columbia

In British Columbia unless

the Registrar of Companies
consents to the holding of a
meeting at some other place

Court and shareholder
approval (special resolution)

Court approval

CBCA

- The company must include

any shareholders’ proposal in
meanagement'’s information
circular, if supported by 5%
of the shares

Permitted if the Company
makes available telephone,
electronic or other
communications facilities

No restriction on the parties
to a compromise or
arrangement

25% must be Canadian
residents, except (a) for a
holding corporation in which
not more than one-third must
be Canadian residents if it
earns less than 5% of its gross
revenues in Canada and (b) if
the corporation has fewer
than four directors, one of
them must be a2 Canadian
resident

Ordinary resolution at a
special meeting

May be situated anywhere in
Canada

At the place specified in the
Company’s Articles

Shareholder approval (special
resolution) onty

No court approval




Right

Authorized capital

Alteration/Creation of Share
Capital

Powers of Board of Directors

Amendments to Articles (By-
Laws)

Financial Assistance

Voting Rights

Take-over Bid or Issuer Bid
accepted by holders of not
less than 90% of the
securities of the class to
which the bid relates

Corporate and Accounting
Records
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BCCA

Must be fixed at a specific
amount

Does not give rise to a right
of dissent

Any, but not all, powers may
be delegated to a committee

Require approval of
shareholders at a general
meeting

Restricted in certain
circumstances, including for
the purposes of purchasing
shares in the Company

Only if the share carries the
right to vote

The offeror must be a

company existing under the
BCCA

CBCA

Unlimited

May have the right to dissent

Limitations on powers that
may be delegated. At least
25% of directors present at
board meetings must be
Canadian residents

Effective immediately upon
approval of directors; ratified
by shareholders at next
general meeting

No restrictions

Even if the share does not
otherwise carry the right to
vote, shareholders can vote
on certain fundamental
changes

The offeror may be
incorporated anywhere

May be maintained outside
Canada, subject to the Income
Tax Act and other revenue
statutes
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Effects of Continuznce
General

The Continuance does not create a new legal entity, nor will it prejudice or affect the
continuity of the Company. The Continuance will not result in any change in the business of the
Company nor in the persons who constitute the company’s board of directors and officers.
Subsections 187(7) and (8) of the CBCA provide as follows:

“(7)  Rights preserved —~ When a bedy corporate is continued as a corporation
under this Act,

(a)  the property of the body corporate continues to be the property of
the corporation;

(b) the corporation continues to be liable for the obligations of the
body corporate;

(c) an existing cause of action, claim or liability to prosecution is
unaffected;

(d) a civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding pending by
or against the body corporate may be enforced by or against the
corporation, and

(e) a conviction against, or ruling, order or judgment in favour of or
against, the body corporate may be enforced by or against the
corporation.

(S Issued shares — subject to subsection 49(8), a share of a body corporate
issued before the body corporate was continued under this Act is deemed
to have been issued in compliance with the Act and with the provisions of
the articles of continuance irrespective of whether the share is fully paid
and irrespective of any designation, rights, privileges, restrictions or
conditions set out on or referred to in the certificate representing the
share; and continuance under this section does not deprive a holder of any
right or privilege that the holder claims under, or relieve the holder of any
liability in respect of, an issued share”.

Articles of Continuance and General By-law

As a British Columbia company, the Company’s charter documents currently consist of a
memorandum, which sets out the name and authorized capital of the Company, and articles,
which are, in effect, the internal regulations for the functioning of the Company. Upon the
Continuance teking effect, the Articles of Continuance will take the place of the memorandum,
and will set out the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the shares of the
Company (which are presently set out in the articles).
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The proposed Articles of Continuance are set out in Schedule “A” to this Information
Circular. The alterations will (i) provide that an unlimited number of Common Shares and
Preferred Shares without par value (the “Preferred Shares”) are authorized; (ii) change article or
section numbers and references to the governing statute and otherwise allow conformity with the
provisions of the CBCA, (iii) expressly set out the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions
attaching to the Common Shares, as required by the CBCA,; and (iv) provide that the provisions
contained in the share provisions for the Preferred Shares (none of which are currently
outstanding) may be repealed, abrogated, altered, varied, added to, modified, amended or
amplified with the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the Preferred Shares then outstanding
or by a resolution passed with the affirmative vote of note less than two-thirds of the votes of
such holders cast on a poll. Except for such alterations, the rights and restrictions which are
presently applicable to the shares of the Company are substantially the same as the rights,
privileges, restrictions and conditions which will attach to such shares after Continuance and are
set out in the Articles of Continuance.

Currently the Company is authorized to issue 600,000,000 shares divided into
500,000,000 Common Shares and 100,000,000 Preferred Shares. The Articles of Continuance
provide for an unlimited number of Common Shares and Preferred Shares. The Company has
been informed by its advisors that it is typical for corporations incorporated under the CBCA to
have an unlimited number of shares, to provide increased future flexibility to the Company.

As described above under “Differences between the BCCA and the CBCA”, under the
CBCA, a meeting of shareholders may be held anywhere in Canada and at a place outside
Canada if the place is specified in the articles of the corporation. The proposed Articles of
Continuance indicate that meetings of shareholders of the Company may be held anywhere in
Canada and at Denver, Colorado, London, England and Sydney, Australia.

The proposed General By-law is set out in Schedule “B” to this Information Circular.
The Continuance Resolution provides for the adoption of this General By-law. This General By-
law, which would become effective upon the Continuance, is consistent with the provisions of
the CBCA and with modern corporate practice.

Number of Directors
Currently, the Company has determined the number of directors of the Company at five.

The CBCA provides that the shareholders of a company may provide in the articles of the
Company for a minimum or maximum of directors. The shareholders may adopt an amendment
to the articles of the Company to increase or, subject to the provisions of the CBCA, decrease the
minimum or maximum number of directors. The Articles of Continuance provide that the
Company shall have a minimum of three and a maximum of ten directors, and the actual number
of directors within the minimum and maximum number may be determined from time to time by
resolution of the directors. They also allow the directors to appeint one or more additional
directors (not exceeding one-third of the directors elected at the previous annual meeting of
shareholders) between annual meetings of shareholders. The BCCA currently permits additional
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directors to be appointed on this basis and the directors believe that it would be in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders for the Board to continue to be able to appoint,
from time to time, one or more qualified persons as directors when such person or persons
become available.

The continuance is subject to the approval of the regulatory authorities having
jurisdiction. The continuance will become effective upon the Articles of Continuance being filed
with and accepted by the Director of the CBCA. The Company’s legal advisors in British
Columbia are of the opinion that the Company’s application for the consent of the Registrar to
the Continuance will be granted. Following the passing of the Continuance Resolution, the
Articles of Continuance must be filed with and accepted by the Director under the CBCA to
effect the continuance of the Company under the CBCA. If the members approve the special
resolution for the continuance, the Articles of Continuance will be filed immediately, and the
Meeting will be adjourned until such time as such filing has been accepted.

The text of the special resolution (the “Continuance Resolution”), in substantially the
form to be presented to the members, subject to such changes not affecting the general intent of
the said resolution as may be regquired by the regulatory authorities or by counsel for the
Company, is set forth below:

"UPON MOTION, IT WAS RESOLVED, as a special resclution, that:

1. the Company make application to the Director (the “Director”) appointed under
the Canada Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA”) for a Certificate of
Continuance continuing the Company as a corporation to which the CBCA
applies and in connection therewith make application to the Registrar of
Companies (the “Registrar”) appointed under the Company Act (British
Columbia) for authorization to permit the Company to apply for such certificate of
continuance and continue under the laws of Canada under the CBCA as if it had
been incorporated under the CBCA (the "Continuance');

2. the articles of continuance (the "Articles of Continuance”) of the Company shall
provide for:

(a) an authorized capital consisting of an unlimited number of commeon shares
without par value and an unlimited number of Preferred Shares without
par value, issuable in series; and

()  aminimum of three and a maximum of 10 directors

and shall otherwise be substantially in the form attached as Schedule "A" to the
Information Circular of the Company, dated May 7, 2002, (the “Information
Circular”), with such related amendments, deletions or alterations as may be
considered necessary or advisable by any officer of the Company in order to
ensure compliance with the provisions of the CBCA, as the same may be
amended, and the requirements of the Director thereunder.
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3. subject to the issuance of such a Certificate of Continuance and the Registrar
providing such authorization and without affecting the validity of the
incorporation or existence of the Company by and under its memorandum and
articles or of any act done thereunder, the Company is hereby authorized to
approve and adopt, in substitution for the existing Memorandum and Articles, the
Articles of Continuance attached as Schedule “A” to the Information Circular,
with any amendments, deletions or alterations as described in paragraph 2 of this
resolution, which Articles of Continuance are hereby approved, and all
amendments to the memorandum and articles of the Company reflected therein
are hereby approved;

4. effective upon the issuance of such Certificate of Continuance, the General
By-law attached as Schedule “B” to the Information Circular is hereby adopted
and approved;

5. notwithstanding that this special resoluticn has been duly passed by the members
of the Company, the board of directors of the Company be and it is hereby
authorized and empowered, in its sole discretion, to abandon the application for a
certificate of continuance continuing the Company as a corporation to which the
CBCA applies, or to determine not to proceed with the continuance, without
further approval of the members of the Company, at any time prior to the
endorsement by the Director of a certificate of continuance;

6. any director or officer of the Company be, and such director or officer hereby is,
authorized and empowered, acting for, in the name of and on behalf of the
Company, to execute or cause to be executed, under the seal of the Company or
otherwise, and to deliver or cause to be delivered, such other documents and
instruments, and to take such other actions as such officer or director may
determine to be necessary or advisable to implement this resolution and the
matters authorized hereby including, without limitation, the execution of the
General By-law, execution and filing of Articles of Continuance and any forms
prescribed or contemplated by the CBCA with the Director and the filing with the
Registrar of a duly certified copy of the Certificate of Continuance, such
determination to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such
documents or instruments and the taking of any such actions."

The special resolution authorizing the continuance of the Company under the CBCA wiil
authorize the directors not to proceed with the continuance if, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, such continuance is not in the best interests of the Company.

The proposed Articles of Continuance and General By-Law of the Company to be
presented to the Meeting may be inspected during regular business hours at the registered office
of the Company at 1040-999 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2.
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RIGHTS OF DISSENT
Dissent Rights under the BCCA for the Continuance

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to section 37 of the BCCA, you may until twe days before
the date of the Meeting, give the Company a Notice of Dissent by registered mail, addressed to
the Company at 1040-999 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2, with respect to the
Continuance Resolution. As a result of giving a Notice of Dissent, you may, upon receiving a
Notice of Intention to Act under Section 207 of the BCCA, require the Company to purchase all
your shares in respect of which the Notice of Dissent was given. A vote against the special
resolution or withholding a vote does not constitute 2 Notice of Dissent.

Any holder of the Company's Common Shares is entitled to be paid the fair value of all,
but not less than all, of such shares in accordance with Section 207 of the BCCA if the holder of
the Company's Commeon Shares dissents to the continuance of the Company from the BCCA fto
the CBCA and such continuance becomes effective. A holder of the Company’'s Commeon Shares
is not entitled to dissent with respect to the continuance under the BCCA if he votes any of such
shares in favour of the special resolution authorizing the continuance of the Company.

Procedure for Dissent under the BCCA

If the special resolution is approved, the Company must notify the dissenting member of
its intention to act and must advise the dissenting member of his rights under Section 207 of the
BCCA. Within 14 days of the Company giving Notice of Intention to Act, the dissenting
member must deliver to the registered office of the Company a notice that he requires the
Company to purchase all of his Commeon Shares (the “Demand for Payment”), and the applicable
share certificates. Upon receipt of such notice and share certificates, the dissenting member is
bound to sell his Common Shares and the Company is bound tc buy them.

Under the BCCA, a dissenting shareholder who has sent a Demand for Payment may
apply to the Court which may:

(a) require the dissenting shareholder to sell and the company to purchase the shares
in respect of which the Demand for Payment has been given;

(b) set the price and terms of the purchase and sale, or order that the price and terms
be established by arbitration, in either case having due regard for the rights of
creditors; and

(¢) join in the application any other dissenting shareholder who has delivered a
Demand for Payment; and

(d make consequential orders and given directions it considers appropriate.

Under the BCCA, a dissenting shareholder whe has delivered a Demand for Payment may
not vote, or exercise or assert any rights of a member in respect of the shares for which a Demand
for Payment has been given, other than the right to receive payment for those shares. Until a
dissenting shareholder who has delivered a Demand for Payment is paid in full, that dissenting
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shareholder may exercise and assert all the rights of a creditor of the company. A dissenting
shareholder may not withdraw his or her Demand for Payment unless the Company consents.

The foregoing is a summary only of the right of dissent under the BCCA with respect to
the special resolution to approve the continuance. It is suggested that any member wishing to
avail himself of the right of dissent under the BCCA retain his own legal counsel as failure to
comply strictly with the provisions of the BCCA may prejudice his right of dissent.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors presently consists of five directors and it is intended to elect six
directors for the ensuing year.

The term of office of each of the present directors expires at the Meeting.

The nominees proposed by management presume that the motion approving the
Continuance is carried and the Articles of Continuance are recorded with the Director appointed
under the CBCA prior to the election of the directors. In the event that the motion approving the
continuance is not carried, the list of nominees for election as directors wili be revised so that the
board will comply with the requirements of the BCCA. ‘

The persons named in the following table are proposed by management for election as
directors of the Company. Each director elected will hold office until the next Annual General
Meeting or until his successor is duly elected or appointed, unless his office is earlier vacated in
accordance with the charter documents of the Company or he becomes disqualified to act as a
director. In the absence of instructions to the contrary, the enclosed Proxy will be voted for the
nominees listed herein.

MANAGEMENT DOES NOT CONTEMPLATE THAT ANY OF THE NOMINEES
WILL BE UNABLE TO SERVE AS A DIRECTOR. THE COMPANY HAS NOT RECEIVED
NOTICE OF AND MANAGEMENT IS NOT AWARE OF ANY PROPOSED NOMINEE IN
ADDITION TO THE NAMED NOMINEE.

The following information concerning the respective nominees has been furnished by
each of them:
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Principal Occupation or
Employment and, if not
elected 2 director by 2
vote of security holders,

First and Present

Approx. no. of
voting securities
beneficially
ewned, directly er
indirectly or over
which direction or

Name, Country of occupation during the Position with the comtrol is
Ordinary Residence past five years? Company” exercised®

Frank D. Wheatley™® Lawyer; President and Chairman and Nil
Canada Chief Operating Officer, Director,

Apr.1999 to Apr./2001, Jun.25/1999 tc date

Vice-President and General

Counsel, Apr./2001 to date,

Gabriel Resources Ltd.
Gregory A. Hahn Professional geologist; Director, 150,000
United States President and director of Mar.09/1994 to date

the Company and President,

Jun.22/1995 to date

James T. McClements™® | Chief Executive Officer, Director, Nil
United States Resource Capital Funds, Jun.25/1999 to date

Apr./1988 to date; Senior

Vice-President and director

NM Rothschild & Sons

(Denver), Mar./19%4 to

Apr,/1998
Gordon J. Boggen™® Managing Director, Director, Nil
Canada Beacon Group Advisors Jun.25/1999 to date

Inc., Jan./2001 to date;

Director, Newcrest Capital

Inc., Nov./1999 {o

Nov./2000
Ross R. Bhappu Vice-President, RCF Nominee Nil

United States

Management LLC, the
management company for
Resource Capital Funds,
Mar./2001 to date;
Director, Mountain States
R&D International, Inc., a
U.S. based metaliurgical
consulting firm; President
and Chief Executive
Officer, GTN Copper
Corporation, Aug./1997 to
Mar./2001; Director,
Business Development and
Planning, Newmont
Mining Corporation,
Nov./1993 to Jul.1997
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Principal Oecupation or
Employment and, if not
elected a director by a
vote of security holders,

First and Present

Approx. no. of
voting securities
beneficially
owned, directly or
indirectly or over
which direction or

Name, Country of occupation during the Position with the control is
Ordinary Residence past five years'” Company"” exercised”
Patrick M. James Independent natural Nominee Nil

For the purposes of disclosing positions held in the Company, "Company" shall include the Company

Unless otherwise stated above, each of the above-named nominees has held the principal occupation or

Securities beneficially owned by directors is based on information fumished to the Company by the

United States resource management
consultant, Feb./2001 to
date; President and Chief
Executive Officer, Rio
Algom Limited, Jun./1997
to Feb./2001; director and
officer, Santa Fe Pacific
Gold Corporation, 1979-
1997

(1)

and/or a parent or subsidiary thereof.
2
) employment indicated for at least five years.
(3)
nominees.
Q) Member of Audit Committee.
(5) Member of Compensation Committee.

ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

At the Meeting, the members will be asked to consider, and the directors recommend the
shareholders approve, a special resolution, with or without amendment, amending the
Company’s Articles of Continuance by consolidation of the Company’s Common Share capital
on the basis of one post-consclidation Common Share for each 10 pre-consolidation Common
Shares.

The text of the special resolution, in substantially the form to be presented to the
members, subject to such changes not affecting the general intent of the said resolution as may be
required by the regulatory authorities or by counsel for the Company, is set forth below:

BE IT RESOLVED, with or without amendment, as a special resolution that:

(a) the Articles of Continuance of the Company be amended pursuant to Section 173
of the Canada Business Corporations Act such that the issued and cutstanding
Common Shares of the Company be consolidated on the basis of one new
Common Share for each 10 Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to
giving effect to the consolidation,
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shareholders shall not be entitled to receive fractional Commeon Shares as a result
of the consolidation and the number of Common Shares issuable on the
consclidation shall be rounded down to the nearest whole number of Common
Shares;

© any one or more directors or officers be and they are hereby authorized, upon the
board of directors resolving to give effect to this resolution, to take all necessary
steps and proceedings, and to execute and deliver and file any and all applications,
declarations, documents and other instruments and do all such other acts and
things (whether under the corporate seal of the Company or otherwise) that may
be necessary or desirable to give effect to the provisions of this resolution; and

(d)  notwithstanding the approval of the shareholders of the Company as herein
provided, the board of directors of the Company may, in their scle discretion,
revoke this special resolution before it is acted upon, without further approval of
the shareholders of the Company.

The purpose of the alteration of share capital is to provide the Company with suitable and
sufficient authorized capital to offer the Company increased flexibility in raising equity capital.

In accordance with section 1 of the Canada Business Corporations Act, a "special
resolution” means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the votes cast
by the shareholders who voted in respect of that resolution or signed by all the shareholders
entitled to vote on that resolution.

CHANGE OF NAME

At the Meeting, the members will be asked to consider, and the directors recommend the
shareholders approve, a special resoclution, with or without amendment, amending the
Company’s Articles of Continuance by changing the name of the Company from “Summo
Minerals Corporation” tc “Constellation Copper Corporation”. The proposed Articles of
Amendment are set out in Schedule “C” to this Information Circular.

The text of the special resolution, in substantially the form to be presented to the
members, subject to such changes not affecting the general intent of the said resolution as may be
required by the regulatory authorities or by counsel for the Company, is set forth below:

BE IT RESOLVED, with or without amendment, as a special resocluticn that:

(a) the Articles of Continuance of the Company be amended pursuant to Section 173
of the Canada Business Corporations Act such that the name of the Company is
changed from “Summo Minerals Corporation” to “Constellation Copper
Cerporation”,
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(b) any one or more directors or officers be and they are hereby authorized, upon the
board of directors resolving to give effect to this resolution, to take all necessary
steps and proceedings, and to execute and deliver and file any and all applications,
declarations, documents and other instruments and do all such other acts and
things (whether under the corporate seal of the Company or otherwise) that may
be necessary or desirable to give effect to the provisions cf this resolution; and

{c) notwithstanding the approval of the shareholders of the Company as herein
provided, the board of directors of the Company may, in their sole discretion,
revoke this special resolution before it is acted upon, without further approval of
the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with section 1 of the Canada Business Corporations Act, a "special
resolution” means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than two-thirds of the votes cast
by the shareholders who voted in respect of that resolution or signed by all the shareholders
entitled to vote on that resolution.

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Reference is made to Schedule "D" attached hereto and forming a part hereof.

INDEBTEDNESS TO COMPANY OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND
SENIOR OFFICERS

None of the directors, executive officers and senior officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, proposed nominees for election or associates of such persons is or has been indebted
to the Company (other than routine indebtedness) in excess of $25,000 at any time for any reascn
whatsoever, including the purchase of securities of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Since the commencement of the Company's last completed financial year, other than as
disclosed elsewhere herein, no insider, propcsed nominee for election as a director or any
associate or affiliate of such insider or proposed nominee of the Company has any material
interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or in any proposed transaction which has materially
affected or would materially affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries save and except as set
forth below:

A, Loan in the principal amount of $5.750.000 U.S. (87,904,250 Cdn.) and Private
Placement Transaction

Resource Capital Fund II L.P. (“RCF II"’) has provided a loan facility to the Company in
the maximum principal amount of 5,750,000 U.S. (§7,904,250 Cdn.) (the “First Loan”), bearing
interest at the “Prime” rate + 0.25% per annum, where “Prime” means an annual rate of interest
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which equals the floating commercial loan rate of Bank One, Colorado, announced from time to
time as its “prime rate”, which rate is adjustable cn the date of any change. Interest is payable
semi-annually, in arrears, and may, at the Company’s election, be paid in shares. The purpose of
the First Loan was to: (i) finance the Company’s acquisition of 48% of the issued shares of
Matrix Metals Limited (the “Matrix Shares”), a company listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange; and (ii) allow the Company to lend funds on an inter-company basis to Matrix for
working capital purposes. The First Loan is advanced, in whole or in part, at the election of the
Company.

In consideration for the First Loan, the Company has issued to RCF II non-transferable
share purchase warrants (the “Warrants™) to purchase up to a maximum of 28,775,000 Commeon
Shares of the Company.

The Warrants associated with each tranche of the first Loan will have a term of three
years commencing on the date such tranche is drawn-down.

In April, 2002, as part of the Company’s capital restructuring plan, all 28,775,000
Warrants were exercised.

RCF I and RCF @I collectively constitute a “control person” of the Company. James T.
McClements, a director of the Company, is also the Chief Executive Officer of Resource Capital
Associates L. L.C. and RCF II GP Limited, the General Partners of RCF I and RCF II,

respectively.

B. Loan in the principal amount of $900,000 U.S. ($1,368.990 Cdn.)

On August 1, 2001 and September 24, 2001, RCF II provided a further loan facility in
two tranches of $500,000 U.S. and $400,000 U.S. respectively (collectively the “Second Loan™)
in the aggregate amount of $900,000 U.S. (81,368,990 Cdn.) with 9,000,000 warrants (a
“Warrant” or, collectively, the “Warrants”) attached. One whele Warrant entitled RCF II to
purchase one additional Common Share at $0.15 Cdn. per share and expires on the first to occur
of (i) the sale by the Company of any of its equity interest in Matrix Metals Limited (41,985,715
ordinary shares) or (ii) the sale by the Company any of the its property interest in the Terrazas
Project, Mexico, or (iii) December 31, 2005.

The proceeds of the Second Loan were used to provide general working capital.

In April, 2002, as part of the Company’s capital restructuring plan, all 9,000,000
Warrants were exercised.

C. Lean in the principal amount of $1.100,000 U.S. ($1,750,200 Cdn.)

RCF 1I provided a further loan facility (the “Third Loan”) to the Company of up to
$1,100,000 U.S. in two tranches as follows:

(a) $600,000 U.S. ($952,500 Cdn.) (the “First Tranche) on November 16, 2001; and
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(b) $500,000 U.S. (798,400 Cdn.) (the “Second Tranche”) on January 3, 2002.

The Third Loan is convertible, at the election of RCF II, into a total of 31,582,000
Common Shares of the Company, as follows:

(@) the First Tranche: into 17,226,545 Common Shares; and
(b) the Second Tranche: into 14,355,455 Common Shares

on the basis of $0.055 Cdn. per Common Share and an exchange rate of $1.00
U.S. equals $1.5770 Cdn.

The proceeds of the Third Loan were used to fund the working capital requirements of
Matrix Metals Limited (“Matrix”), completion of the pre-feasibility study on the Terrazas
copper-zinc oxide property, Mexico, and the Company’s working capital requirements.

The Company issued to RCF II 550,000 Common Shares in consideration of establishing
the Third Loan in the principal amount of $1,100,000 U.S.

The Third Loan is repayable on the first to occur of (i) the sale or joint venture by the
Company of a material (>10%) interest in Matrix Metals Limited (41,985,715 ordinary shares)
(or Matrix’s projects, including Mt. Cuthbert, White Range and Mt. Watson) or its property
interest in the Lisbon Valley Copper Project, San Juan County, Utah, or the Terrazas Project,
Mexico, or (ii) December 31, 2005. The Company has elected to settle interest on the Third
Loan accrued through March 31, 2002, by the issuance of 941,124 Common Shares. It is the
Company’s intention to have the Third Loan converted into Common Shares as part of the
Company’s capital restructuring plan.

Reference is also made to the heading "Incentive Stock Options ".

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The management of the Company will recommend to the Meeting the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, of 400-609 Granville Street, Vancouver, B.C. V7Y 1L3, as
auditor of the Company to hold office until the close of the next Annual General Meeting of
members. It is proposed that the remuneration to be paid to the auditor be fixed by the directors.

Coopers & Lybrand, LLP, the predecessor of PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP was first
appointed auditor of the Company on January 25, 1996.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

There are no management functions of the Company or a subsidiary thereof which are to
any substantial degree performed by a person other than a director or senior officer of the
Company or a subsidiary thereof.




24

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

It is not known that any other matters will come before the meeting other than as set forth
above and in the Notice of Meeting accompanying this Information Circular, but if such should
occur the persons named in the accompanying Form of Proxy intend to vote on them in
accordance with their best judgement exercising discretionary authority with respect to
amendments or variations of matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and other matters which
may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company listed its shares on The Torento Stock Exchange (the “TSE”) in January
1996. To date a corporate governance committee has not been formed. This section discloses
the corporate governance practices of the Company as required by the TSE under section 474 of
the Company Manual (the “Guidelines”).

A. Mandate and Responsibility of the Board

The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising management in carrying on the
business and affairs of the Company. Directors are required to act and exercise their powers with
reasonable prudence in the best interests of the Company. The Board agrees with and confirms
its responsibility for overseeing management's performance in the following particular areas set
forth in the Guidelines:

the strategic planning process of the Company;
identification and management of the principal risks associates with the business
of the Company;

° planning for succession of management;
the Company's policies regarding communications with its members and others;
and

o the integrity of the internal controls and management information systems of the
Company. '

In carrying out its mandate; the Board relies primarily on management tc provide it with
regular detailed reports on the operations of the Company and its financial position. The Board
reviews and assesses these reports and other information provided to it at meetings of the full
Board and of its committees. The President and CEO is a member of the Board, giving the
Board direct access to information on his areas of responsibility. Other management personnel
regularly attend Board meetings to provide information and answer questions. Directors also
consult from time to time with management and visit the operations of the Company. The
reports and information provided to the Board include details concerning the monitoring and
management of the risks associates with the Company's operations, such as compliance with
safety standards and legal requirements, environmental issues and the financial position and
liquidity of the Company. At least annually, the Board reviews management's report on its
business and strategic plan and any changes with respect to risk management and succession
planning,.
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The Board has considered whether it is necessary or appropriate to appoint a Chairman of
the Board who is not involved in management. On June 25, 1999, the Board appointed Frank D.
Wheatley as Chairman. The Chairman assists the Board to function independently of
management.

B. Composition of the Board

The Board is comprised of five directors. One of the directors, Gregory A. Hahn, is an
officer of the Company and is involved in management of the Company. As such, Mr. Hahn is a
“related director” for the purposes of the Guidelines. Four of the directors are "unrelated
directors".

For the purposes of the Guidelines since the Board considers that they are free from
relationships or other interests which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially
interfere with their ability to act or exercise judgment in the best interests of the Company, other
than interests and relationships arising from their shareholdings. If any conflict of interest
situation arises, the directors involved abstain from voting, in accordance with corporate law
principles.

The Company does have a single significant shareholder, being a shareholder with the
ability to exercise a majority of the votes for the election of the Board of Directors. Resource
Capital Fund L.P. (“RCF I") and Resource Capital Fund L.P II (collectively “RCF’’) hold 78.7%
of the issued shares of the Company. The Board inciudes a number of directors who do not have
interests in or relationships with either the Company or RCF and which fairly reflects the
investment in the Company by shareholders other than RCF.

Accordingly, the Board considers that the composition of the Board meets the Guidelines.
The Board also considers that its composition fairly reflects the shareholdings in the Company.

The Board considers its size to be appropriate and effective for the carrying out of its
responsibilities.

C. Description of Board Committees

The Board has established two full-time committees, an Audit Committee and a
Compensation Committee.

The Audit Committee is composed of three directors, all of whom are "unrelated". The
Audit Committee has responsibility for overseeing the internal controls and management
information systems of the Company, and for reviewing and recommending to the Board for
approval all external financial reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee interacts with
the Company's internal financial officer and with the external auditors in their review of the
Company's financial statements and internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviews
annually the management arrangements for the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the
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Company's financial statements before they are approved by the Board. Reference is made to the
section captioned, "Election of Directors”, with respect to the members of the Audit Committee.

The Compensation Committee is composed of three directors, all of whom are
“unrelated”. The Compensation Committee has responsibility for determining the appropriate
levels of compensation for management and for determining related compensatory matters such
as the granting of incentive stock opticns. The Compensation Committee meets at least annually.

- The Company considers that its corporate governance practices substantially comply with
the Guidelines for Improved Corporate Governance in Canada adopted by The Toronto Stock
Exchange..

D. Identification of Prospective Directors

All directors have been charged with identifying potential new Board members who could
serve in an appropriate capacity as the Company grows. Changes to the Board can be expected
pericdically as the Company matures and the Beard identifies prospective new members who can
help direct the Company.

BOARD APPROVAL

The contents of this Information Circular have been approved in substance and its mailing
has been authorized by the directors of the Company pursuant to consent resolutions passed as of
May 16, 2002.

CERTIFICATE

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a
material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading
in the light of the circumstances in which it was made.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Summeo Minerals Corperation

“Gregory A. Hahn”

Gregory A. Hahn, President
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ARTICLES OF CONTINUANCE

Canada Business (Section 187)
Corporations Act
1- Name of Corporation

Summo Minerals Corporation
2- The place in Canada where the registered office is to be situated

1040-999 West Hastings Street

Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2
3- The classes and any maximum of shares that the corporation is authorized to issue

The annexed Exhibit 1 is incorporated in this form.

4 - Restrictions, if any, on share transfers
None
5- Number (or minimum and maximum number) of directors

A minimum of three and a maximum of 10

6- Restrictions, if any, on business the corporation may carry on
None
7- (1) If change of name effected, previous name
n/a

@) Details of incorporation

Incorporated on July 23, 1987 under the name "No. 96 Sail View Ventures Ltd.”.
Pursuant to a Change of Name Certificate, dated September 11, 1987, “No. 96 Sail View
Ventures Ltd.” changed its name to "East Coast Explorations Ltd."

Pursuant to a Change of Name Certificate, dated October 15, 1993, “East Coast
Expilorations Ltd.” changed its name to “Summo Minerals Corporation”.

8- Other provisions, if any

The annexed Exhibit 2 is incorporated in this form.

Date Signature Title
FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLY Filed
Corporation No.




EXHIBIT 1

ARTICLES OF CONTINUANCE -

SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION

The classes and any maximum number of shares that Summo Minerals Corporation (the
“Corporation”) is authorized to issue:

1.

(a) an unlimited number of common shares without par value; and
(b) an unlimited number of Preferred shares without par value.

COMMON SHARES

The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the common shares without

par value (the “Common Shares”) are as follows:

1.1

1.1.1

1.2

1.2.1

1.3

1.3.1

Dividends

The holders of Common Shares shall be entitled to receive dividends if, as and when
declared by the directors of the Corporation out of the assets of the Corporation properly
applicable to the payment of dividends in such amounts and payable in such manner as
the directors may from time to time determine. Subject to the rights of the holders of any
other class of shares of the Corporation entitled to receive dividends in priority to or
concurrently with the holders of the Common Shares, the directors may in their sole
discretion declare dividends on the Common Shares to the exclusion of any other class of
shares of the Corporation. '

Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the Preferred
Shares (as hereafter defined), or any series thereof, in the event of the liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, or any
other distribution of the assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose
of winding up its affairs, the holders of the Common Shares will be entitled to all
remaining property and assets of the Corporation.

Voting Rights
The holders of the Common Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of and to attend all

annual and extraordinary meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation and to one vote
in respect of each Common Share held at all such meetings.
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PREFERRED SHARES

The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the Preferred Shares without par
value (the “Preferred Shares”), as a class, are as follows:

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

Issusnce in Series

The Preferred Shares may, upon compliance with the applicable provisions of the Canada
Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA”), be issued at any time and from time to time in
one or more series, each series to consist of such number of shares as may, before the
issue thereof, be fixed by the directors.

Subject to the provisions of the CBCA, the by-laws of the Corporation and the rights,
privileges, restrictions and conditicns attached tc the Preferred Shares of any series, the
directors may by resolution (a “Series Reseclution™) duly passed before the issuance of
Preferred Shares of any series, alter the Articles to fix the number of Preferred Shares in,
and to determine the designation of the Preferred Shares of, such series and alter the
Articles to create, define and attach rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions to the
Preferred Shares of such series, including (as examples only} without in any way limiting
the generality of the foregoing, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions concemning:

® the rate, amount or kind of dividends, whether cumulative or non-cumulative, the
currency or currencies or kind of payment, the date or dates and place or places of
payment and the date or dates from which such dividends are to accrue;

(i)  the right to receive notice of or to attend or to vote at any meeting of shareholders
of the Corporation;

(iii)  the right to convert or exchange the Preferred Shares of any series into or for
Common Shares or other shares, bonds, debentures or securities of the
Corporation or any other person;

(iv)  the right of the Corporation to redeem or to purchase the Preferred Shares of any
. series and the terms and conditions of such redemption or purchase;

(v)  obligations with respect to sinking funds or funds for purchase or redemption of
the Preferred Shares or any series, rights of retraction or share purchase plans;

(vi)  restrictions upon the payment of dividends on, or retirement of, any other shares
of the Corporation or of any subsidiary of the Corporation,

(vil) restrictions upon the redemption or purchase of any other shares of the
Corporation or of any subsidiary of the Corporation;
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(viii)

(ix)
)

(xi)

(xi)

(x111)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

the exercise by the Corporation of any election open to it to make any payments of
Corporation, income or other taxes;

the subdivision, consolidation or reclassification of any shares of the Corporation;

restrictions upon incurring or becoming liable upon indebtedness by the
Corporation or by any subsidiary of the Corporation or the issue by the
Corporation of any preferred shares in addition to the Preferred Shares of any
series at any time cutstanding;

restrictions upon the reduction of capital by the Corporation or by any subsidiary
of the Corporation;

restrictions upon the retirement of notes, bonds. or debentures or other
indebtedness of the Corporation or of any subsidiary of the Corporation,;

limitations or restrictions upon or regulations concerning the conduct of the
business of the Corporation or the investment of its funds;

the holding of meetings of the holders of the Preferred Shares of any series;

restrictions upen the creation or issuance of any other shares or securities of the
Corporation; '

the right of the holders of the Preferred Shares of any series to receive copies of
the annual financial statements of the Corporation and the auditor’s report
thereon;

the right of holders of the Preferred Shares of any series to subscribe for or
purchase or receive any part of any issue of shares, bonds, debentures or other
securities of the Corporation or any other person;

the option or privilege of holders of the Preferred Shares of any series to require
the Corporation to redeem or purchase any or all of their Preferred Shares of such
series and the terms and conditions of such redemption or purchase; and

the rights of holders of the Preferred Shares of any series in the event of
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation or any other distribution
of assets or property of the Corporation ameng its shareholders for the purpose of
winding-up its affairs.

The Preferred Shares shall, with respect to the priority in payment of dividends and in the
distribution of assets or property of the Corporation in the event of the liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up of the Corporation whether voluntary or involuntary, or in any
other distribution of assets or property of the Corporation among its shareholders for the
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2.15

2.16

purpese of winding-up its affairs, be entitled to a preference and priority over the
Commen Shares and any other shares ranking junior to the Preferred Shares and, subject
to the provisions of the CBCA, the Preferred Shares may also be given such other
preferences over the Common Shares and any other shares ranking junior to the Preferred
Shares as may be provided in the Series Resolution of such Preferred Shares.

Subject to the provisions of the CBCA, the by-laws of the Corporation and the rights,
privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the Preferred Shares of any series, the
Corporation shall have the right at any time or times to create, allot and issue any shares
of any class or classes ranking in priority to or on a parity with the Preferred Shares or the
Preferred Shares of any series and having such designation and rights, privileges,
restrictions and conditions attached thereto, including, without in any way limiting the
generality of the foregoing, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions concerning the
matters set forth in paragraph 2.1.2, as may be set forth in the resolution or resolutions
creating such class and defining the special rights or restrictions to be attached thereto.
The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the Preferred Shares or the
Preferred Shares of any series shall not be prejudiced or interfered with by reason only of
the creation, issuance and allotment of shares of any other class or classes ranking in
priority to or on a parity with the Preferred Shares or the Preferred Shares of such series.

Nothing contained in these share provisions shall require any consent or approval of the
holders of the Preferred Shares or the Preferred Shares of any series to any alteration to
the Articles which shall authorize or provide for the creation of additional preferred
shares including any that rank in priority to the Preferred Shares and it is a term of the
issuance of any of the Preferred Shares that the holders thereof consent to any such
alteration, provided that there has been compliance with the conditions, if any, set forth in
the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the Preferred Shares or the
Preferred Shares of such series.

Subject to the provisions of the CBCA, the provisions contained in these share provisions
may be repealed, in whole or in part, abrogated, altered, varied, added tc, modified,
amended or amplified with the consent of the holders of Preferred Shares given as
provided herein.

A consent under paragraph 2.1.6 shall be sufficiently given if it shall be given in writing
by the holders of two-thirds of the Preferred Shares then outstanding or by resolution
passed at a meeting of the holders of Preferred Shares, duly called for that purpose and
held upon at least 21 days’ notice, at which the holders of at least 10% of the Preferred
Shares then cutstanding are present or represented by proxy and carried by the affirmative
votes of not less than two-thirds of the votes on such resolution cast on a poll.

If at any meeting of the holders of Preferred Shares, a quorum is not present or
represented by proxy within one-half hour after the time appointed for such meeting, then
such meeting shall be adjourned to a date not less than 15 days thereafter and to such time
and place as shall be appointed by the chairman and at least 10 days’ notice shall be given




of such adjourned meeting, but it shall not be necessary to specify the purpose for which
such meeting was originally called. At such adjourned meeting, the holders of the
Preferred Shares then present or represented by proxy may, subject to the provisions of
the CBCA, transact the business for which such meeting was originally called and a
resolution shall be carried by the affirmative votes of not less than two-thirds of the votes
on such resolution cast on a poll. Except as otherwise provided herein, the formalities to
be observed in respect of the giving of notice of any meeting or adjourned meeting and
the conduct thereof shall be those from time to time prescribed by the CBCA and the
by-laws of the Corporation with respect to general meetings. On every poll taken at any
such meeting or adjourned meeting, every holder of Preferred Shares shall be entitled to
one vote in respect of each Preferred Share held by such holder.




Exhibit 2
Articles of Continuance

Summo Minerals Corporation

(D The actual number of directors within the minimum and maximum number set out in
paragraph 5 of the Articles of Continuance may be determined from time to time by
resolution of the directors of the Corporation.

2) The directors of the Corporation may appoint one or more additional directors, who
shall hold office for a term expiring not later than the close of the next annual meeting
of shareholders, but the total number of directors so appointed may not exceed one
third of the number of directors elected at the previous annual meeting of
shareholders.

3) Meetings of shareholders of the Corporation may be held anywhere in Canada, at
Denver, Colorado, Londen, England or Sydney, Australia.
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SUMMO MINERALS CORPORATION
GENERAL BY-LAW

A by-law relating generally to the conduct of the business and affairs of the Corporation

1.1  Definitions

In this by-law, which may be cited at the “General By-law”, and all other by-laws of the
Corporation, and from time to time, unless the context otherwise specifies or requires;

“Act” means the Canada Business Corporations Act, and any statute that may be substituted
therefor, as from time to time amended,;

“Articles” mean the original or restated articles of continuance of the Corporation as from time
to time restated.

“Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation;

“by-laws” means this by-law and any other by-law of the Corporation from time to time in force
and effect;

“comtracts, documents or imstruments in writing” includes deeds, mortgages, charges,
conveyances, powers of attorney, transfers and assignment of property, real or personal,
immovable or movable, of all kinds (including specifically but without limitation conveyances,
transfers and assignments of shares, warrants, stocks, bonds, debentures or other securities),
agreements, releases, receipts and discharges for the payment of money or other obligations,
proxies for shares or other securities and all paper writings;

“Corporation” means Summo Minerals Cerporation;

“meeting of shareholders” mean any meeting of shareholders including an annual meeting and a
special meeting of shareholders and includes a meeting of any class or classes or series of
shareholders;

“non-business day” means Saturday, Sunday and any other day that is a holiday as defined in the
Interpretation Act (Canada);

“recorded address” means in the case of a shareholder the address as recorded in the securities
register; and in the case of joint shareholders the address appearing in the securities register in
respect of such joint holding or the first address sc appearing if there are two or more; and in the
case of a director, officer or auditor, the latest address as recorded in the records of the
Corporation;




1.2 Interpretation

Unless expressly provided otherwise, or the context otherw1se requires, in thls General
By-law, and all other by-laws of the Corporation:

(1) words and expressions defined in the Act have the same meanings when used
herein;

(i)  words importing a singular number include the plural and vice versa;

(i)  words importing any gender include all genders; and

(iv)  words importing persons include individuals, corporations and other bodies
corporate, limited and unlimited liability companies, general and limited
partnerships, associations, trusts, unincorporated organizations, joint ventures and
governmental authorities.

1.3  Headings

The headings used are inserted for reference purposes only and are not to be considered or
taken into account in construing the terms or provisions of this or any other by-law or to be
considered in any way to clarify, modify or explain the effect of any such provisions.

ARTICLE TWO
MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

2.1  Meetings of Shareholders

Meetings of shareholders of the Corporation shall be held at such time or times and place
or places as the Board determines.

2.2 Documents

Where any special business at any meeting of shareholders includes the presenting,
consideration, approving, ratifying or authorizing any document, the portion of any notice
relating to such document shall be sufficient if it states that a copy of the document or proposed
document is or will be available for inspection by shareholders at a place specified in such notice
during business hours on any specified working day or days prior to the date of the meeting.

2.3 Meetings by Telephonic or Electronic Means

If the directors or the shareholders of the Corporation call a meeting of shareholders
pursuant to the Act, those directors and shareholders, as the case may be, may determine that the
meeting shall be held, in accordance with the regulations of the Act, if any, entirely by means of
telephonic, electronic or other communication facility that permits all participants to
communicate adequately with each other during the meeting.




2.4 Chairman, Secretary and Scrutineers

The chairman of any meeting of shareholders shall be the President of the Corporation or,
in the absence of such officer, any director who is present and willing to act as chairman of the
meeting. If no such person is present within fifteen minutes from the time fixed for holding the
meeting, the persons present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to act as
chairman. The secretary of any meeting of shareholders shall be the Secretary of the
Corporation. If the Secretary is absent, the chairman of the meeting shall appoint some person,
whe need not be a shareholder, to act as secretary of the meeting. The chairman of the meeting
may appoint one or more persons who need not be shareholders to act as scrutineers at the
meeting.

2.5  Persons Entitled to be Present

The only persons entitled to be present at a meeting of shareholders shall be those entitled
to vote thereat, the directors, the President, the auditor of the Corporation and others who,
although not entitled to vote, are entitled or required under any provision of the Act or the
Articles or by-laws to be present. Any other person may be admitted with the consent of the
meeting or of the chairman of the meeting.

2.6 Proxies

The Board may from time to time make or establish regulations regarding the lodging of
proxies at some place or places other than the place at which a meeting or adjourned meeting of
shareholders is to be held and for particulars of proxies to be sent by telegraph, telex, telecopy,
facsimile, e-mail or other method of transmitting writing, or other means of communication in
common usage before the meeting or adjourned meeting to the Corporation or any agent of the
Corporation for the purpose of receiving such particulars and providing that proxies so lodged
may be voted as though the proxies themselves were produced at the meeting or adjourned
meeting, and votes given in accordance with such regulations shall be valid and shall be counted.
The chairman of any meeting of shareholders may, subject to any regulations made or established
as aforesaid, in his discretion accept communication by telegraph, telex, telecopy, facsimile, e-
mail or other method of transmitting writing, or other means of communication in common usage
as to the authority of anyone claiming to vote on behailf of and to represent a shareholder
notwithstanding that no proxy conferring such authority has been lodged with the Corporation,
and any votes given in accordance with such communication accepted by the chairman of the
meeting shall be valid and shall be counted.

2.7 Joint Shareholders

If two or more persons hold shares jointly, any one of them present in person or
represented by proxy at a meeting of shareholders may, in the absence of the other or others, vote
the shares; but if two or more of those persons are present in person or represented by proxy and
vote, the vote of the joint holder whose name appears first on the shareholders list of the
Corporation shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint shareholder or
shareholders.




2.8  Quorum

Except as otherwise provided in the Articles or by-laws, a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of shareholders shall be two persons present in person, each being a
shareholder entitled to vote thereat or a duly appointed proxy holder for or representative of such
a shareholder and together holding or representing in the aggregate not less than 5% of the
outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to be voted at the meeting. If a quorum is not
present at the opening of the meeting of shareholders, the shareholders present may adjourn the
meeting to a fixed time and place, and at the adjourned meeting a quorum will be those
individuals present.

2.9  Declaration by Chairman

The chairman of a meeting of shareholders may declare to the meeting the decision on
any question in accordance with the result of a show of hands or ballot. A declaration by the
chairman that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority, or
lost or not carried by a particular majority, will, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, be
proof of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or
against the resolution.

2.10 Casting Vote

In the case of an equality of votes on a ballot, the chairman of a meeting of shareholders
shall be entitled to a second or casting vote in addition to any vote to which he or she may
otherwise be entitled.

2.11 Ballots

Any ballot to be taken at any meeting of shareholders will be taken in such manner and at
such time and place and either at once, later in the meeting or after an interval or adjournment, or
otherwise as the chairman of the meeting directs. The result of the ballot will be deemed to be
the resolution of the meeting at which the ballot was demanded or directed. A demand for a
ballot may be withdrawn at any time prior to the taking of the ballot. In case of any dispute as to
the admission or rejection of a vote, the chairman of the meeting may determine the same, and
such determination shall be final and conclusive.

2.12 Procedures

The chairman of a meeting of shareholders will have regard to accepted rules of
parliamentary procedure, but:

(1) the chairman shall have the absolute authority over the matters of procedure and
there will be no appeal from the ruling of the chairman, but if the chairman, in his
or her absolute discretion, deems it advisable to dispense with the rules of
parliamentary procedures as to any meeting of shareholders or part thereof, the
chairman shall so state;




(i)  if disorder should arise which prevents continuation of the business of a meeting
of shareholders, the chairman may quit the chair and anncunce the adjournment of
the meeting, and upon his or her doing so, the meeting will be immediately
adjourned; and

(1)  the chairman may ask or require that anyone other than a director, the auditor of
the Company or anyone not a registered owner or proxy holder leave a meeting of
shareholders.

ARTICLE THREE
DIRECTORS

3.1  Meetings and Proceedings

The directors may meet together at such place as they think fit, adjourn and otherwise
regulate their meetings and proceedings as they see fit.

3.2  Calling of and Notice of Meetings

Meetings of the Board will be held at such place and time and on such day as any
director, or the Secretary upon the request of a director, may determine. Notice of meetings of
the Board shall be given to each director not less than 24 hours before the time when the meeting
is to be held. Notice may be given, orally, personally or by telephone, or in writing, delivered
personally or by prepaid first-class post, telegraph, telex, telecopy, facsimile, email or any other
method of transmitting writing, or any cther means of communication in common usage. When
written notice of a meeting is given to a director, it shall be addressed to him or her at his or her
registered address or at his or her usual business or residential address, including any telex,
telecopy, facsimile number or e-mail address provided by him or her to the Corporation. Where
the Board has established a fixed time and place for the holding of its meetings, no notice of
meetings to be held at such fixed time and place need be given to any director. For the first
meeting of the Board to be held immediately following the election of a director at an annual
general meeting of the Corporation or for a meeting of the Board at which a director is appointed
to fill a vacancy in the Board, no notice of such meeting will be necessary to such newly
appointed or elected director in order for the meeting to be duly constituted.

3.3 Votes to Govern

At all meetings of the Board every guestion shall be decided by a majority of the votes
cast on the question; and in case of an equality of votes the chairman of the meeting will not be
entitled to a second or casting vote.

3.4  Inmterest of Direciors and Officers Generally in Contracts

No director or officer will be disqualified by his or her office from contracting with the
Corporation nor will any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation
with any director or officer so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the
Corporation for any profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such




director or officer holding that office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established;
provided that the director or officer has complied with the provisions of the Act.

3.5 Chairman

The directors present at any meeting of the Board may choose one of their number to be
the chairman of the meeting.

ARTICLE FOUR
THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS

4.1  Banking Arrangements

The banking business of the Corporation, or any part thereof, including, without
limitation, borrowing of money and the giving of security therecf, will be transacted with such
banks, trust companies or other financial institutions or bodies corporate or organizations as the
Board may designate, appoint or authorize from time to time. Such banking business, or any part
thereof, will be transacted on the Corporation’s behalf by such one or more officers or other
persons as the Board may designate from time to time and shall be transacted under such
agreements, instructions and delegations of power as the Board may from time to time prescribe.

4.2  Execution of Instruments

Contracts, documents or instruments in writing requiring execution by the Corporation
may be signed on behalf of the Corporation by (i) any two directors or (ii) any one of the
Chairman of the Board, the President or a director, together with one of a vice-president, the
Secretary or the treasurer, and all contracts, documents or instruments in writing so signed will
be binding upon the Corporation without any further authorization or formality. The Board may
from time to time by resolution appoint any officer or officers or any other person or persons, on
behalf of the Corporation, to sign and deliver contracts, documents or instruments in writing
generally (including a class of contracts, documents or instruments in writing) or specific
contracts, documents or instruments in writing and determine the manner in which any contracts,
documents or instruments in writing may be signed, including the use of facsimile reproduction
of any or all signatures and the use of the corporate seal or a facsimile reproduction thereof. Any
contract, document or instrument in writing may be signed by any one director or officer of the
Corporation for the purpose of certifying copies of or extracts from the Articles or by-laws,
minutes of meetings or resolutions of the shareholders or the Board or any committee of the
Board, or any instrument executed or issued by the Corporation. The corporate seal of the
Corporation, if any, may be affixed to contracts, document and instruments in writing signed as
aforesaid.

4.3 Corporate Seal

The Corporation may, but need not, adopt a corporate seal, and may change a corporate
seal that is adopted. Any corporate seal that is adopted or changed for the Corporation shall be
such as the Board may by resolution from time to time approve.




ARTICLE FIVE
DIVIDENDS

5.7 Dividends

Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Articles, the directors may from time to time
declare and authorize payment of such dividends, if any, as they may deem advisable and need
not give notice of such declaration to any shareholder. Any dividend may be declared and paid
out of retained earnings, profits or other income of the Corporation or cut of capital surplus,
share premium account on appraisal surplus, if any, or as otherwise permitted by law. A
declaration by the directors as to the amount of such amounts or funds or asssts available for
dividends shall be conclusive. Any dividend may be paid wholly or in part by the distribution of
specified assets, and in particular by shares, bonds, debentures or other securities of the
Corporation or any other corporation or in one or more ways as may be authorized by the
Corporation or the directors. Where any difficulty arises with respect to such a distribution the
directors may settle the same as they think expedient, and in particular may fix the value for
distribution of such specified assets or any part thereof, and may determine the cash payment in
substitution for all or any part of the specified assets to which any shareholder is entitied will be
made to any shareholder on the basis of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all
parties and may vest any specified assets in trustees for persons entitled to the dividend as may
seem expedient to the directors.

5.2  Dividend Pgymesnt

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, a dividend payable in money may be paid by
cheque drawn on the Corporation’s banks, or one of them, to the order of each registered holder
of shares of a class or series in respect of which the dividend has been declared, and mailed by
prepaid ordinary mail to such registered holder at the holder’s recorded address. In the case of
joint holders the chegue will, unless such joint holders otherwise direct, be made payable to the
order of all such joint holders and mailed to them at their recorded address. The Corporation
may pay a dividend by cheque to a registered holder or to joint holders other than in the manner
herein set out, if the registered holder or joint holders so request. The mailing of such cheque as
aforesaid, unless the same is not paid on due presentation, shall satisfy and discharge the liability
for the dividend to the extent of the sum represented thereby plus the amount of any tax which
the Corporation is required to and does withhold.

5.3 Fderms

The Corporzation may, when directed by a registered holder of a share in respect of which
a dividend in money has been declared, pay the dividend in the manner so directed.




5.4  Non-receipt or Loss of Dividend Cheques

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, in the event of non-receipt or loss of any
dividend cheque by the person to whom it is sent, the Corporation shall issue to such person a
replacement cheque for a like amount on such terms as to indemnity, reimbursement of expenses
and evidence of non-receipt or loss and of entitlement as the Board, the Vice-President in charge
of finance or the Secretary may from time to time prescribe, whether generally or in a particular
case.

ARTICLE SIX
PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

6.1  Limitation of Liability

To the extent permitted by law, no director or officer for the time being of the
Corporation will be liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other director, officer,
employee or agent, or for joining in any receipt or act for conformity, or for any loss, damage or
expense happening to the Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any
property acquired by, for or on behalf of the Corporation or for the insufficiency or deficiency of
any security in or upon which any of the money of the Corporation shall be placed out or
invested, or for any loss or damages arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of
any person, firm or body corporate with whom or which any moneys, securities or assets
belonging to the Corporation may be lodged or deposited, or for any loss, conversion,
misapplication or misappropriation of or any damage resulting from any dealings with any
moneys, securities or other assets belonging to the Corporation, or for any other loss, damage or
misfortune whatever which may happen in the execution of the duties of the director’s or
officer’s respective office or trust or in relation thereto unless the same will happen by or through
the director’s failure to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the
Corporation and in connection therewith to exercise the care, diligence and skills that a
reasonably prudent person would exercise in comparable circumstances. If any director or officer
of the Corporation is employed by or performs services for the Corporation otherwise than as a
director or officer or is a member of a firm or a shareholder, director or officer of a body
corporate with 1s employed by or performs services for the Corporation, the fact of his or her
being a director of the Corporation will not disentitle such director or officer or such firm or body
corporate, as the case maybe, from receiving proper remuneration for such services.

6.2  Indemnification of Directors and Officers

The Corporation shall indemnify a director or officer of the Corporation, a former director
or officer of the Corporation or another individual who acts or acted at the Corporation’s request
as a director or officer or an individual acting in a similar capacity, of another entity, and his or
her heirs and legal representatives thereof, to the extent permitted by the Act or otherwise by law.




6.3  Indemmnity of Others

Except as otherwise required by the Act and subject to Section 6.2, the Corporation may
from time to time indemnify and save harmless any person who was or is a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by
reason of the fact that he or she is or was an employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was
serving at the request of the Corporation as an employee, agent of or participant in another entity,
against expenses (including legal fees), judgments, fines and any amount actually and reasonably
incurred by him or her in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted honestly and
in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Corporaticn or, as the case may be, to the
best interest of the other entity for which he or she acted as a director or officer or in a similar
capacity at the Corporation’s request, and, with respect to any criminal or administrative action
or proceeding that is enforced by a monetary penalty, had reasonable grounds for believing that
his or her conduct was lawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgmenit,
order, settlement or conviction will not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act
honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Corporation or other entity and,
with respect to any criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a monetary
penalty, had no reasonable grounds for believing that his or her conduct was lawful.

6.4  Right of Indemmnity not Exclusive

The provisions for indemnification contained in the by-laws are not deemed to be
exclusive of any other rights to which any person seeking indemnification may be entitled under
any agreement, vote of shareholders or directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her
official capacity and as to action in another capacity, and will continue as to a person who has
ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and will inure to the benefit of the heirs and
legal representatives of such a person.

ARTICLE SEVEN
NOTICES

7.1  Method of Giving Notices

Any notice, communication or document to be given, sent, delivered or served pursuant
to the Act, the regulations thereunder, the Articles, the by-laws or otherwise, to a shareholder,
director, officer or auditor shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally to the person whom
it is to be given or if delivered to the person’s recorded address or if mailed to the person at the
person’s recorded address by prepaid ordinary or air mail or if sent to the person at the person’s
recorded address. A notice so delivered shall be deemed to have been given when it is delivered
personally or to the recorded address as aforesaid; a notice so mailed shall be deemed to have
been given on the fifth business day afier its deposit in a post office or public letter box. In the
event of any disruption, strike or interruption in the Canadian or United States postal services
after mailing and before receipt or deemed receipt of a document, it will be deemed to have been
received on the sixth business day following full resumption of the applicable postal service. If
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the party giving any notice or other written communication knows or ought reasonably to know
of any difficulties with the postal system that might affect the delivery of mail, any such demand,
notice or other communication may not be mailed but must be given by personal delivery or by
facsimile or other electronic means of communication. Notices may be validly given by way of
facsimile or other electronic means of communication and if sent on a business day during
normal business hours of the recipient they shall be deemed to have been received on the date of
their transmittal and, if not, on the next business day.

7.2 Omissions and Errors

The accidental omission to give any notice to any shareholder, director, officer or auditor
or the non-receipt of any notice by any such person or any error in any notice not affecting the
substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting to which the notice related
or was otherwise founded thereon.

7.3 Persons Entitled by Death or Operation of Law

Every person who, by operation of law, transfer, death of a shareholder or any other
means whatsoever, becomes entitled to any share, shall be bound by every notice in respect of
such share which shall have been duly given to the shareholder from whom such person derives
such person’s title to such share prior to such person’s name and address being entered on the
securities register (whether the notice was given before or after the happening of the event upon
which he or she became so entitled) and prior to his or her furnishing to the Corporation the
proof of authority or evidence of entitlement prescribed by the Act.

7.4 Waiver and Notice

A shareholder, proxyholder, director, officer or auditor may at any time waive any notice,
or waive or abridge the time for any notice, required to be given to him under any provision of
the Act, the regulations thereunder, the Articles, the by-laws or otherwise and such waiver or
abridgment, whether given before or after the meeting or other event of which notice is required
to be given, shall cure any default or defect in the giving or in the time of such notice, as the case
may be. Any such waiver or abridgment shall be in writing except a waiver of notice of a
meeting of shareholders of the Board or of a committee of the Board which may be given in any
manner.

ARTICLE EIGHT
GENERAL

8.1  Effective Date

The General By-law shall come into force on the date of issue of a certificate of
continuance continuing the Corporation under the Act.
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8.2  Inmvalidity

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this by-law will not affect the
validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this by-law.

President Secretary
Chief Executive Officer
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FORM 4
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
{(SECTION 27 OR 177)

I- Name of Corporation

CONSTELLATION COPPER CORPORATION

2 - Corporation No.

3- The articles of the above-named corporation are amended as follows:

By amending paragraph 1 of the Articles of the Continuation to change the name of the

Corporation to CONSTELLATION COPPER CORPORATION

Date Signature 4, - Capacity of
/200 _
Fqn‘ Departmental Use Only Printed Name
Filed: @%Eﬁ& @




(2)

(b)

(©)

Schedule “D” to the Information Circular of
Summeo Minerals Corporation (the "Company')

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the purposes of this Information Circular:

"CEQ" of a company means an individual who served as chief executive officer of the
Company or acted in a similar capacity during the most recently completed financial year;

"executive officer” of a company for a financial year means an individual who at any time
during the year was:

@
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

V)

the Chair of the company, if that individual performed the functions of the office
on a full-time basis;

a Vice-Chair of the company, if that individual performed the functions of the
office on a full-time basis;

President of the company;

a Vice-President of the company in charge of a principal business unit, division or
function such as sales, finance or production; or .

an officer of the company or any of its subsidiaries or any other person who
performed a policy-making function in respect of the company

whether or not the individual was also a director of the company or any of its subsidiaries.

"Named Executive Officers" means:

(1)
(i)

(i)

each CEO, despite the amount of compensation of that individual,

each of the company's four most highly compensated executive officers, other
than the CEO, who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most
recently completed financial year, provided that disclosure is not required ... for an
executive officer whose total salary and bonus ... does not exceed $100,000; and
any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under
(ii) but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of
the issuer at the end of the most recently completed financial year end.

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth, for each of the Company's three most recently completed
financial years, the compensation of the President (also herein referred to as the "CEQO") and the
four most highly compensated executive officers of the Company, other than the CEO. The CEO
and such four executive officers are referred to collectively as the "Named Executive Officers".

During the fiscal yeaf ended December 31, 2001, the Issuer had four named executive
officers (for the purposes of applicable securities legislation), namely:




1. Gregory A. Hahn, the President and Chief Executive Officer (January 1-December 31,

2001);

2. James D. Frank, Vice-President, Business Development, Summo USA Corporation, the
Company’s wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary (January 1-December 31, 2001),
3. Robert A. Prescott, Vice-President, Operations, Summo USA Corporation, the

Company’s wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary (January 1-December 31, 2001); and

4, J. Christopher Mitchell, Executive Vice-President, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
(January 1-December 31, 2C01).

(collectively the “Named Executive Officers”). The following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the compensation of the Named Executive Officers.

Annual Compensation

Long Term Compensation
Awards Payouts
Securities | Restricted
Other Under Shares or
Annual Options/ | Restricted All Other

Name and Compen- | SARs® Share LTIP® Compen-
Principal Year | Salary Bonus sation granted Units payouts sation
Position M (U.S. $) (US.9)P | (US.SD | (#) (U.S.$) (US.$) | (USS)
Gregory A. 2001 | $165,000® | Nil $4,950 650,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Hahn, President | 2000 | $132,000® | Nil $3,300 300,600 | Nil Nil Nil
and Chief 1999 | $132,000® | Nil $2,640 300,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Executive Officer
James D. Frank, | 2001 | $120,000® | Nii $3,600 350,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Vice-President, | 2000 | $120,000® | Nil $3,000 250,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Business 1999 | $120,000® | Nil $2,400 150,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Development,
Summo USA®
Robert A. 2001 | $120,000® | Nil $3,600 350,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Prescott, Vice- 2000 | $120,000® | Nil $3,000 250,000 | Nil Nil Nil
President, 1999 | $120,000® | Nil $2,400 150,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Operations,
Summeo USA
J. Christopher 2001 | $130,000 | Nil $2,925 500,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Mitchell” 2000 | $32,500® | Nii Nil 500,000 | Nil Nil Nil
Executive Vice- 1999 | n/a n/a na n/a na na n/a
President,
Secretary and
Chief Financial
Officer
Notes: (1) January 1 to December 31.

2) Bonus amounts are paid in cash in the year following the fiscal year in which they were earned.

3) Employer’s share of contributions to 401{k) plan.

@ Stock appreciation rights.

) Long-term incentive plan.

(6) Vice-President, Finance, and Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary (January 1 to

Cctober 1, 2000); Vice-President, Business Development, Summo USA Corporation, the
Company’s wholly-owned U.S. subsidiary (October 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001)




N October 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001
(8) Reference is made to the section captioned “Management Contracts” of the Company’s
Information Circular.

Options and Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs")

The following table sets forth details of incentive stock options granted to each of the
Named Executive Officers during the most recently completed financial year (January 1, 2001 to
December 31, 2001) (the "Financial Period"):

Percentage of Market Value
Total of Securities
Options/SARs underlying
Securities granted to Options/SARs
under Employees in Exercise or on the Date of
Options/SARs Financial Base Price Grant Expiration
Name granted (#) Period ($/Security) ($/Security) Date
Gregory A. Hahn 650,000 26.53%" $0.20 @ Apr/18/2006
J. Christopher Mitchell 500,000 20.40% $0.20 @ Apr/18/2006
James D. Frank 350,000 14.28%" $0.20 @ Apr/18/2006
Robert A. Prescott 350,000 14.28%" $0.20 & Apr/18/2006
1) Reflected as a percentage of the total number of options to purchase common shares granted

(2,450,000) during the Financial Period.

2 The common shares of the Company did not trade on The Toronto Stock Exchange (the
“Exchange”) on April 18, 2001; however, the common shares closed at $0.06 per share on the
Exchange on April 12, 2001, the last day on which the Company’s shares prior to the grant of the
options.

No incentive stock options were exercised by the Named Executive Officers during the
Financial Period. '

Pension Plan
The Company does not have a pension plan.

Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts

There are four employment contracts between the Company and a Named Executive
Officer. There is no compensatory plan or arrangement, including payments to be received from
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, with respect to the Named Executive Officers except as
set forth below: ‘

(a) The Hahn Agreement

Gregory A. Hahn’s (“Hahn”) employment as President is the subject of an Employment
Agreement, dated December 31, 1995 (the “Hahn Agreement”). Pursuant to the Hahn
Agreement, Hahn receives an annual salary of $140,000 U.S. per year and a standard benefit




package. Hahn is also entitled to additional bonus or incentive compensation as determined by
the Board of Directors. Hahn alsc has been granted options to purchase up to 1,100,000
Common Shares of the Company with a five-year term (300,000 at $0.10 Cdn. per share expiring
August 6, 2004, 300,000 at $0.20 Cdn. per share expiring March 27, 2005 and 500,000 at $0.20
Cdn. per share expiring April 18, 2006).

If Hahn’s employment by the Company is terminated for any reason other than Hahn’s
gross negligence or wilful misconduct, a criminal or securities related conviction, material breach
of the Hahn Agreement or incapacitation of Hahn, Hahn will be entitled to continue to receive his
annual compensation and insurance benefits for cne vear after such termination.

) The Prescott Agreement

Robert A. Prescott’s (“Prescott”) employment as Vice-President, Operations of Summo
USA Corporation was the subject of a letter agreement, dated April 5, 1995 (the ‘“Prescott
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Prescott Agreement, Prescott received a salary of $120,000 U.S.
per year and a standard benefits package. Prescott also has been granted options to purchase up
to 750,000 Common Shares of the Company with a five-year term (150,000 at $0.10 Cdn. per
share expiring August 6, 2004, 250,000 at $0.20 Cdn. per share expiring March 27, 2005 and
350,000 at $0.20 Cdn. expiring April 18, 2006).

Mr. Prescott’s employment was terminated effective December 31, 2001, and Mr.
Prescott now acts as a consultant to the Company. On termination, Mr. Prescott received a
severance payment of $127,004 U.S., to be paid in 12 equal monthly instalments.

(©) The Frank Agreement

James D. Frank’s (“Frank”) employment as Vice-President, Business Development,
Summeo USA Corporation, the Company’s U.S. subsidiary, was the subject of a letter agreement
dated January 29, 1996, as amended by agreement, dated September 14, 2000 (the “Frank
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Frank Agreement, Frank received a salary of $120,000 U.S. per
year and a standard benefits package. Frank also has been granted options to purchase 750,000
Common Shares of the Company with a five-year term (150,000 at $0.10 Cdn. per share expiring
August 6, 2004, 250,000 at $0.20 Cdn. per share expiring March 27, 2005 and 350,000 at $0.20
Cdn. per share expiring April 18, 2006).

Mr. Frank’s employment was terminated effective December 31, 2001, and Mr. Frank
now acts as a consultant to the Company. On termination, Mr. Frank received a severance
payment of $140,056 U.S., to be paid in 12 equal monthly instalments.

(d) The Mitchell Agreement

J. Christopher Mitchell’s (“Mitchell”) employment as Executive Vice-President,
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company is the subject of a letter agreement, dated
September 14, 2000 (the “Mitchell Agreement”). Pursuant to the Mitchell Agreement, Mitchell

e |



receives a salary of $130,000 U.S. per year and a standard benefits package. Mitchell also has
been granted an option to purchase up to 1,000,000 Common Shares of the Company at $0.20
Cdn. per share with a five-year term (500,000 expiring October 2, 2005 and 500,000 expiring
April 18, 2006). In the event that the Company has a change of control and Mitchell is as a result
asked to perform in a reduced capacity, or if the financing of the Lisbon Valley Project does not
proceed and Mitchell’s services are no longer required as a consequence, Mitchell will receive
one year’s salary as a severance payment.

Compensation of Directors

During the Financial Period, no compensation was paid to the directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries for their services:

(a) in their capacity as directors, including any amounts payable for committee participation
or special assignments pursuant to any standard or other arrangements; or
(b) as consultants or experts

except that the Company paid:

(a) $56,059 Cdn. with respect to legal services rendered to the Company by Scott, Bissett,
former legal counsel to the Company, and a law firm in which Graham H. Scott, a
director of the Company, is a partner. The partnership was dissolved effective June 30,
2001; and

(b) $21,582 Cdn. with respect to legal services rendered to the Company by VECTOR
Corporate Finance Lawyers, legal counsel to the Company, and a law firm of which
Graham H. Scott is the sole proprietor.

Reference is also made to the heading "Incentive Stock Options ".
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